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About us

P Group plc develops intellectual
property (“IP"') based businesses.
We invest from our balance sheet
and also from funds that we manage
on behalf of others.

Our aims
- To identify compelling intellectual property based opportunities in our key target sectors

- To develop these opportunities into a diversified portfolio of robust businesses
- To grow our assets and those we manage on behalf of third parties
- To provide our shareholders with quoted access to venture returns

How we work

Proprietary deal flow IP Group's core elements

IP Group pic partnerships
1 Glasgow

2 York

3 Leeds

4 Bristol

Z gi;:r y Deal flow Capital
7 Southampton

8 Surrey

9 King's College London

10 Queen Mary, London

Fuslon IP plc partnerships Business
1 Shetfield building
2 Cardiff

Capital
IP Group balance sheet

IP Venture Fund
+ North East Technology Fund
Top Technology Ventures |V




Five year record

Net assets (Em)

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009

Portfolio value {Em)

2005 44
2006
2007
2008
2009

Cash (Em)

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009

Share price {p)

2005

2006

2007

2008 54
2009 57

120
179
214
174
1
a7
126
98
o™
40
51
46
a3
28
103
144

10

We are committed to communicating with

all of our stakeholders

This year we have produced an online version
of our Annual Report and Accounts which
¢an be easily viewed and bookmarked at

www [pgroupplc.com/reports
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Energy & Renewables

Chemicals & Materials

Medical Equipment
& Supplies

Fair value: £16.8m

(2008 £130m)

Number of companies: 10
(2008 9)

The Energy & Renewables sector experienced
the most sigruficant increase in fair value during
the period {c 28%) largely as a result of the
recovery In the share price of Medern Water plc
This was partially offset by a reduction in
Oxford Catalysts Group plc's { Oxford Catalysts )
share price

Modern Water plc announced fresh water
production had begun at (ts desahnation plant
in Cman Its first plant in Gibraltar, has been
successfully supplying water directly into
Gibraltar s potable water distribution system
since May 2009 The fall in the share price of
Oxford Catalysts came despite it having been
awarged develepment grants totaliing in
excess of $77m as well as new agreements
with PTT Pubfic Company Limited, Thailand’s
largest hsted company and Petrobras the
largest company 1n Latin America, for a
further GTL demonstrator

The Group also made a seed investment into
Encos Limited which aims to replace concrete
as a structural materiat with fully sustainable
construction products made from 100%
recycled and industrial waste materials

Portfolio analysis by fair value (%)
2009

17 Energy & Renewables

20 Chemicals & Matenals

31 Medical Equipment & Supphies
24 Pharma & Biotech

5 IT & Communications

3 Multiple sectors

Fair value: £20.2m
(2008 £239m)

Number of companies: 16
(2008 18)

Decrease In the fair value of the Chemicals
& Matenials portfolio can be largely attributed
to the negative share price movement

of Green Chemicals pic which was offset

to some degree by an unrealised fair value
gain in the Group’s holding in Oxford
Advances Surfaces Group plc ( OAS )

Green Chemicals' share price fell despite the
unveihng of an ammonia-free, breakthrough
hair bleaching and colouring systemn which
1s considered safer and simpler than other
permanent dye products currently on the
market Meanwhile, OAS, an advanced
matertals company announced in June that
its Onto® surface modification technotogy
had facilitated a breakthrough in adheston
for inert and low-surface energy matenals
inciuding PET and polyimide polymers

Elsewhere in the Chemicals & Matenals portfolio
Xeros Limited the company behind the worlds
first "virfually waterless washing machine
technology successfully completed a Series A
financing while Surrey NanoSystems Limited
secured a8 £2 5m financing

Fair value: £31.0m

(2008 £302m)

Number of companies: 15
(2008 23)

The fair value of the Groups portfalio of
Medical Equipment & Supplies or med tech
companies remalined stable during the penod

The most significant transaction of 2009 for
the sector was Cxford Nanopore Technologies
Limited's worldwide strateqic allance with
NASDAQ quoted lllumina Inc for the
development and commeraalisation

of ts BASE™ Technology for super-fast
DNA sequencing As part of the agreement,
Ithzrrina invested $18m in Oxiord Nanopare
Following the period end, Oxford Nanopore
announced a further £174m equity financing

Avacta Group plc announced a number of
acquisitions in the period and also the first
sale of its flagshsp Optim diagnostic proguct
whsle the technology behind Tissue Regenix
Limited was highlighted in Qctober 2009

as being at the centre of a £50m ' 50 actve
years after 50" research intiative Elsewhere
Retroscreen Virglogy Limited announcec

a successful £2 6m financing Its sates have
grown by over 66% 1n the last three years,
generating over £5m in revenue In the year
te 31 July 2008, and resulting 1n the company
being included in the Sunday Times 2009
Tech Track 100

Portfolio analysis by fair value (%)

2008

13 Energy & Renewables
24 Chemicals & Materials

31 Medical Equipment & Supplies

28 Pharma & Biotech

4 [T & Communtcations




Pharma & Biotech

IT & Communications

Fair value: £24.8m
(2008 £270m)

Number of companies: 10
(2008 12)

The Groups Pharma & Biotech portfolio saw
a hmited level of unrealised fair value losses
cduning 2009 predominantly due to a reduction
In Proxamagen Neuroscience ple s share price
over the penod despite that company having
significantly strengthened its business with

a £50m financing

Photopharmica Holdings Lirnited received
MHRA regulatory approval for its repeat dose
Phase Il leg ulcer tnal for its lead compound
PPA904 n late 2008 and recruited its first
patients during the second quarter of 2009
The company received further external validation
during April 2009 that no bactenal resistance
to PPA904 photodynamie therapy developed
even under sustained conditions

Having successfully raised £6 3m through an
AlM placing in May 2009 Synairgen continued
development of its respiratory drug programmes
with the second half of 2009 seeing the
patent for the company's lead compound,
Interfercn-beta, being granted in the US
positive Phase | safety results being achieved
and anti-viral proof of mechanism being
confirmed Syntopix meanwhile continued
to progress the commercial gpplications of

Its topical antimicrobial innovations adding

a second twelve month exclusive evaluation
agreement with a major consumer healihcare
company to that signed with Procter & Gamble
during 2008

Portfolio analysis by number (%)
2009

16 Energy & Renewables

25 Chermacals & Matenals

24 Medical Equipment & Supplies
16 Pharma & Biotech

17 IT & Commurucationg

2 Mditiple sectors

Fair value: £4.9m

(2008 £4 3m)

Number of companies: 11
{2008 12)

The increase In the Group's holdings in

IT & Communications portfolic companies
was largely attributable to an increase

In the share price of AlM-listed CCTV

and survelllance technology company.
Coe Group plc

In the latter part of 2008, Coe rationalised
Its cost base and raised almost £1m During
2009, the company announced a number
of commercial partnerships and contract
awards including a £1m contract to provide
the video surveillance solution for the
Seoul Metropolttan Subway network

Tracsis pic the scheduling software company
for the transportation industry, continued to

grow revenues and cperating profits in 2009
and further consohdated its market position

through two strategic acquisitions

Our portfolio

s diversified
and maturing
with companies
in five main
sectors

Portfolio analysis by number (%)

2008

12 Energy & Renewables
25 Chemicals & Materials

31 Medical Equipment & Supplies

16 FPharma & Biotech

16 1T & Commumications

03

sjJodasfworsjddnoidbd) mmm

6002 S1Un0I2y pue Loday enuuy 3id dnosg 4)



04 Chairman’s statement

IP Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2009

www ipqroupplc com/reports

In summary

Strong financial position with cash
balances of £28.Jm and no borrowings

Funds managed on behalf of third
parties now £63m

Portfolio made strong technical and
commerctal progress

Dr Bruce Smith
Chairman

While the global economic environment
In 2009 remained challenging and the
funding environment for early stage
companies continued to be constrained,
| was encouraged by the Group's overall
performance during the period

The Group’s total net assets stood at
£1710mat the end of 2009 (2008 £173 8m)
and we finished the year 1n a strong
financial posttion with a portfolio valued
at £101 3m (2008 £98 4m) and cash
halances of £28im (2008 £33 3m)

and ne borrowings The funds that

we manage on behalf of third parties
have now increased to £E63m after the
Group successfully won the mandate

to manage the £25m North East
Technology Fund, a venture capital fund
dedicated to investing in technology
businesses based in the North East

of England

The Group has augmented its deal flow
pipeline through a strategic investment
In, and the signing of a co-investment
agreement with Fusion IP plc, an AlM-listed
company which owns the exclusive
commercialisation rights to 100% of the
university-owned intellectual property
generated at the University of Sheffield
and Carchff Umiversity which are beth
leading research universities with a
combined research spend in 2008/09
of £190m




IP Group's portfolic remains well diversified
by sector, size and maturity and in general
has made strong technical and commerciat
progress during the perwod Despite the
funding environment remamning tough
the Group s portfolic companies raised
In excess of £58m from public markets

(2008 £25m) and over £22m (2008 £30my)

by way of private financings during the
year It 1s also worth noting that the vast
majority of our more mature portfolio
companies are well funded and debt free

The Group achieved modest realisations
during the yvear and this trend continued
In early 2010 We have maintained our
conservative treasury policies and have
kept a tight control on our cost hase
whilst continuing to support both our
university partners and our portfolio
companies effectively

The strength of IP Group s business lies
In our methodology of commercialising
intellectual property that we have
developed and deployed across our
pipeline and portfolio and 1t 1s pleasing
to see this method bearing fruit

This 1s evidenced by the increasing
maturity profile of the portfolio with
a significant number of our portfolic
companies signing deals in the year
with major multi-national organisations
In addition, a8 number of our portfelio
companies have taken advantage of
market conditions to acquire or divest
businesses as appropriate or have
attracted new investors, while others
are showing solid organic growth
and delivering product to customers

In sumimary, 1P Group 15 financially strong,
appropriately positioned for the current
economic chmate with a robust and well
financed portiolio, and recognised as a
market leader Inits sector tn addition,
there 1s consensus amongst the major
political parties that intellectual property
hased businesses have an importani part
to play m the growth of the economy
which, we believe, should ensure that
government pohcy s favourably disposed
to our sector This gives us continued
confidence in our ability to deliver
shareholder value over the long term

As ever, the Groups achievements
would not be possible were it not for
the hard work and dedication of its
staff, as well as the continued support
of our shareholders, investors, university
partners, portfolio company management
and associates and | would therefore like
to extend my thanks to each of them for
their contnbution and commitment

Dr Bruce Smith
Chairman
1 March 2010

Financially
strong

'IP Group 1s financially strong and

appropriately positioned for the
current economic climate with a

robust and well financed portfolio”
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In summary

Portfolio valued at £101.3m, £28.Im
of cash and funds under management
of £63m

Strengthened three key pillars
of core business

Remain well positioned to create
long-term shareholder value

Alan Aubrey
Chief Executive Officer

IP Group’s core business is the
creation of value for its shareholders
partners and investors through the
commercialisation of intellectual
property in a systermatic and
capital-efficient way Qur strength
lies in managing this process of
wdentifying suitable intellectual
property to commercialise through
the establishment of businesses and
the generation of vatue from them

We consider that there are three key
pillars to the success of IP Group's
core business

+ proprietary access to high qualty
intellectual property based deal flow,

« avallability of capital to support
company growth, and

+ asystematic and capital-efficient
development approach

Despite a continuation of difficult market
conditions during 2009, the Group has
taken steps to strengthen each of these
piilars and 1 outhne on the following
pages the progress that we have made

in this regard




Proprietary deal flow

A key differentiator of the IP Group
business medel Is our exclusive access
to deal flow Over the last ten years, we
have entered into long-term agreements
with ten of the UK's leading universities
with a combined research income of
over £rhillon This has given us unique
and unrivalled access to leading science
and intellectual property In the UK

and has enabled us to build a diverse
portioho of 63 companies based on
groundbreaking discoveries

In December, with support from
shareholders through a vendor placing,
we subscribed for a 19 8% shareholding
In Fuston IP plc, an AlM-listed university
intellectual property commercialisation
company The investment significantly
increases the total university research
income which IP Group 1s able to access
while providing exposure to Fusions
diverse current portfolio of 20 cormpanies

Fusion has the exclusive commercialisation
rights to 100% of university owned
Intellectual property generated at two
of the UK s leading universities, the
University of Sheffield and Cardiff University

“Over the last ten years, we
have entered into long-term
agreements with ten of the
UK's leading universities with
a combined research income

Sheffield 1s the ninth largest and Cardiff

1s the thirteenth largest university

in the UK hased on research income
Fusion has ten-year exclusive partnership
agreerments in place with these universities
In additton, the Group also entered into
a co-investment agreement with Fusion
under which we have the right but not
the obhgation to invest in all future
portfolio companies that Fusion forms
from its partner universities During the
first few months of 2010, the Group has
approved the exercise of its option over
two new Fuston companies under this
agreement, the first is developing medical
devices for laparoscopic surgery and
the second 1s developing novel High
Brightness LEDs

The combination of the strategic
investment in Fusion and co-invesiment
agreement gives the Group exposure
to an existing portfolio of established
spin-out companies and enhances our
proprietary access to the spin-out
pipeline from leading UK research
inshitutions, enabling us to leverage
Fusion's experienced cperating team

Proprietary
deal flow

of over £1 billion.”
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Capital

In 200G the constrained funding
environment for early stage companies,
such as the ones IP Group incubates and
develops, persisted We have conhinued to
work with portfolio companies to attract
external iinance alongside IP Group's
investment as they mature This investment
eriginates from a range of sources
determined by the stage and secior

in which the relevant portfolio company

15 operating Set out below are examples
of the principal sources of co-investrment

« Industrial partners: examples during
the year include the commercial
collaborations and associated
investments of Hlumina Inc with
Oxford Nanopere Technologies
Limited and Upsher-Smith with
Proxtmagen Neuroscience plc,

» venture capital financlers:
investment rounds were led by
Aquanus Equity Partners Limited into
Retroscreen Virclegy by Octopus
Ventures into Surrey NanoSystems
Limited and by Esperante into Karus
Therapeutics Lirmited,

* public markets significant placings
were completed by Proximagen
Neuroscience, Synairgen pic and
Avacta Group plc during 2009, and

Attracting

angels and high net worth Individuals;
financings including material angel
investment were agreed for Actual
Experience Limited and Xeros Limited
during 2009

The Group has continued the investment
of IP Venture Fund in portfolio companies
during the year and increased funds under
management through the winning of

the mandate to manage the North East
Technology Fund which launched in
January 2010 The £25m fund will

invest In technology companies in the
Nerth East region from seed through to
growth stages of development including
opportunities from the leading research
universiiies based in the region The fund
provides further recurring income from
management fees and has the potential
to generate performance fees from
successful nvestment as well as providing
co-investment opportuntties for the Group

The fund 1s part of the £125m JEREMIE
venture capital fund {Joint European
Resources for Micre to Medium Enterprises
Imtiative) the first fund of 1ts type in
England The North East JEREMIE 1s jointly
funded by the European Investment
Bank the European Regional Development
Fund and the Regional Development
Agency, One North East

external finance

"Principal sources of co-investment

iIncluded industrial partners,
venture capital, public markets
and angels and high net

worth individuals.

The managernent of third party funds
continues to bring a number of benefits
to the Group Additional funds broaden
the sources of financing potentially
available to the Group s existing portfolio
companies where such investment 15
ahgned with the refevant fund's investment
mandate The funds also provide specialist
ltmited partner investors with access

to opportunities in IP Group's existing
portfolio and enable them to benefit from
the Group's deep expertise i intellectual
property sourcing, work-up and business
bulding Fund management also leverages
IP Group's existing competencies to provide
additional recurring income and potential
performance-related fees The Group
continuees to seek to increase the level
of third party funds under management
to further consclidate these benefits

In addition, the Group continues to manage
its own balance sheet resources prudently
and, as at 31 December 2009, had £28 1m
of cash resources and no borrowings
We also encourage our portfolic comparies
to take a similar stance to their cwn
financial budgeting and have been working
with them to increase early engagement
with industry as development partners,
sources af equity financing and potential
routes to market for their products



Development approach

Following the Client Services Team
re-structuring described in the 2008
Annual Report, we have been able to
support both our university partners and
our portfolio companies more efficiently
This followed a rigorous review of our
resourcing requirements which enabled
us to make a number of orgarusational
and process improvements | am pleased
to report that this approach has operated
successfully during the year enabling us
to offer more focused, specialist support
to the pipeline and portfolio, which has
been well received

The Group now employs its proprietary
capital-efficient fechnology evaluation
and development model across all of its
partner universities In most instances,
an essential part of this model involves
very early stage engagement in incubation
projects Opportunities at this stage usually
involve Investments of up to £560.000
and this allows for additional proof of
concept work and early commercial
engagement to be carried out Incubation
projects typicaily have durations of nine
to eighteen months following which the
opportunity s generally either progressed
lo seed financing or terminated The Group
also encourages early partnering with
industry and leveraging of imtiat capital
through grants or development finance
During the penod the Group closed a
number of ncubation projects where proof
of concept work faited or the investment
case was Insufficiently compelling to
progress the opportunity further

Chemicals & Materials

Surrey NanoSystems Limited {(*SNS")

A spin-out from the University
of Surrey, SNS secured £2.5m
of funding to commercialise its

Al 31 December 2009, the Group's
portfolio was valued at £101 3m
(2008 £98 4m) More detail of this
15 given In the Portfolio review

Outlook

The economic environment remains
challenging and the funding environment,
particularly for early stage businesses
such as those in which the Group invests,
continues to be constramned Nonetheless,
IP Group 1s financially strong with a
portfolio valued at £1013m, £281m of cash
and funds under managerment of £63m

Our portfolio 1s pregressing well, 15, In
general, well financed and diverse with
exposure to five key sectors and arange
of businesses by teve! of matunity and
our access to both deal flow and capital
15 extremely strong, having both been
recently augmented

These factars, combined with our
continued tight control of our cost base
and the maintenance of conservative
treasury policies give us confidence that
the Group remains well positicned to
create long-term shareholder value

innovative low-temperature growth

process for carbon nanotubes,

targeted for use as an interconnection
technology in semiconductor devices.
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Chief Executive Officer's statement (continued)

Portfolio review

Portfolio overview

At 31 December 2009, the Group's portfolio
consisted of holdings Iin 63 companies
(2008 74) with a fair value that has
stabilised during the year to stand at
£1013m (2008 £98 4m) A summary
analysis of portfolio gains and losses

15 as follows

2009 2008
£m £m

Unrealised gains

on the revaluation

of Investments 153 122

Unrealtsed losses

on ihe revaluation

of Investments 167} 1477)

Net fair value losses {14) (355)

Loss on disposals of

eguity investmenis (0.8) -

Total (2.2) (355)

The principal unrealised gains on the
revaluation of investments comprise from
the quoted portfolio, the positive share
price performance of Modern Water plc
(£7 4m), Oxford Advanced Surfaces

Group pic (£1Im) and Synairgen plc (£1Im),

and from the private portfolo, Oxford
Nanopore Technologies Limited (E3 2m),
which announced a £139m private financing
In January 2009 as part of its woridwide
strategic alhance with lllumina tnc, valuing
the Groups 28 8% stake at £227m

Unrealised losses on the revaluation

of investments predominantly consist

of falls in the share prices of certain
companies in the Group s quoted portfolio,
most significantly Green Chemicals plc
(£33m} Oxford Catalysts Group plc

(E£3 2my), Proximagen Neuroscience plc
(£2 1m) and Avacta Group plc {£17m)

In addition, the application of the valuation
techniques outlined in the Group s
accounting policies set out In note 1to
the financial statements has resulted in
reductions in the fair values of a imited
number of unquoted portfolio companies

Pharma & Biotech

Preximagen Neurosclence plc

Raised £50m, one of the largest
biotech fundraisings in the UK in
the past ten years, and completed
its first acquisition. The Company,
based on research from King's
College London, announced its
second acquisition in January 2010,

Portfolio analysis - by company stage
Of the 63 companies In the Group's
portfalio, 72% of the farr value resides in
the ten companies in which IP Groups stake
1s worth over £3m As at 31 December 2009,
these businesses were valued at £729m
(2008 £72 6m) An analysis of the Group's
portfolio and investment duning the vear,
by company stage, 1s shown opposite

Cver the course of 2009 we gave particular
focus in our portfolto compantes to the
efficient use of cash resources The
success of this work particularly inour
early stage businesses, 1s partially reflected
in the reduction in cash invested during
the year The overall level of investment
into our portfolio during 2009 was £57m,
including the Investment of £29m into
Fusion IP pl¢, compared to £E8 6m duning
2008 The Group's investment approach
15 designed to enable us to incubate
early stage technology businesses with
low levels of cash investment, and this
has borne out in practice during 2009
This approach allows the progressive
elimination of risk with minimal capital
deployment and facilitates the maintenance
of a portfcho that 1s well diversified by



stage and sector During the early part
of 2010, the level of investment made
by the Group has increased to some
degree and by 26 February 2010, £14m
of investment had been made across
five portfolio ocpportunities An additional
trend that 1s helping the Group develop
opportuniiies more cost effectively 1s
the increasing avallablity of translational
funding from a variety of sources

Despite a continuation of difficult equity
rarket cenditions in the very early stage
and micro-cap space, the Group took the
opportunity to make modest realisations
frorm the portfoho, generating proceeds
of £05m (2008 ENIl} The directors
will continue to identify and evaluate
opportunities {o realise cash from

the portfolio when market conditions
and/or specific circumstances make
this appropriate to do so

The Group's Capital Markets Team
continues to work closely with our
portfollo companies, and our portfolio
companies have raised In excess

of £80m through public and private
financings this year (2008 £55m)

Portfolic analysis - by company stage

31 December 200%

Invastment Falr valus Number
Company stage £m Em % %
Incubation projects 0.3 1.0 1% 1 17%
Portfolio businesses <E3m 20 274 27% 42 67%
Portfolio businesses >£3m 34 729 2% 10 16%
All portfolio businesses 57 101.3 100% 63 100%
Proceeds from sales
of equity investments 0.5

31 December 2008

investment Faur value Number
Company stage £m £m % %
Incubation projecis 08 15 2% 20 27%
Bortfolio businesses <£3m 62 243 24% 44 59%
Portfolio businesses »£3m 16 726 74% 10 14%
All portfelio businesses 86 984 100% 74 100%

Proceeds from sales
of equity mnvesimenis -

Capital-efficient
business building

"Our approach allows the

progressive elimination of risk
with minmmal capital deployment.”
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Chief Executive Officer's statement {(continued)

Portfolio review (continued)

Portfelio analysis - by sector
As at 31 Dacembar 2009

Fair value

Number

Sector £m Y% 9%
Energy & Renewables 16.8 17% 10 16%
Chemicals & Materials 20.3 20% 16 25%
Medical Equipment & Supplies 310 31% 15 24%
Pharma & Biotech 24.8 24% 10 16%
IT & Communications 49 5% 1 17%
Multiple sectors 3.5 3% 1 2%

101.3 100% 63 100%

As at 31 December 2008
Number

Fair value

Seclor £m % %
Energy & Renewables 130 13% 9 12%
Chemicals & Matenials 239 24% 18 25%
Medical Equipment & Supplies 302 3% 23 3%
Fharma & Biotech 270 28% 12 16%
IT & Communications 43 A% 12 16%
Multiple sectors - - - -

984 100% 74 100%

Portfolio
progressing well

"Our portfolio 1s progressing well
and 1s, In general, well financed
and diverse, with exposure to
five key sectors.”

Portfolio analysis - by sector

The Group's portfolio consists of five
key sectors, as depicied In the table
shown to the left A more detalled
analysis of each sector 1s set out
over the following pages

Energy & Renewables

The Energy & Renewables sector

has expenenced the mast significant
increase n far value during the period
(approximately 28%j) largely as a result
of the recovery In the share price of
AlIM-listed Modern Water plc which has
contributed a fair value gain of £E74m
This has been partially offset by a reduction
in Oxford Catalysts Group plcs ("0CG )
share price giving rise to an unrealised
reduction in fair value of £32m

1
Modern Water plc, a company that
develops leading water technologies,
has made a number of significant
operational and commercial advances
during the year In November, the
company announced that fresh water
production had commenced at its
Manipulated Osmosis Desalination
{"MOD") plant In Oman The project
15 particularly sigmificant as it acts as
a showcase for the company's technology
in the huge Middle East market, where
annual expenditure on water and
wastewater technology 1s expected




to nse to $52 3 bilhon by 2016 The plant
will also earn Modern Water its first
revenue from desalination This site

15 the second to employ the company’s
MOD technology The first n Gibraltar
has been successiully supplying water
directly into Gibraltar’s potable water
distribution system since May 2009
having been thoroughly gualty tested
by the client and verified by a third-party
expert for approvat to supply the public

While OCG s share price perfermance
has been disappointing dunng the year,
the clean synthetic fuels innovation
company has shown considerable
progress following its acquisition of
Velocys Inc in late 2008 During the
period, OCG announced that it had been
awarded development grants totalling in
excess of $77m (£4 8m) and will benefit
from a further $59m (£3 6m) through
its joint development agreement with
Portugal-based SGC Energra SGPS, S A
in the Fischer-Tropsch field Following
the period end, OCG announced a
further $50m (£31m) agreement with
PTT Public Company Limited Thalland s
largest listed company, for small scale
Gas-to-Liguid ('GTL ) facities and then,
In February 2010, an agreement with
Petréleo Brasileirc S A (Petrobras),

the largest company in Latin America,
for a further GTL demonstrator

Energy & Renewables

Modern Water plc

Energy & Renewables

Company Value* of Group
Group stake value® holding at
3t December 31 Decemnber 31 Decembar 31 December
2009 Ouoted/f 2009 2009 2008

MNamefdescription 9 unquoted Em Em £m
Modern Water plc
Technologies to address
the world's water crisis 232%  Quoted 483 1.2 38
Oxford Catalysts Group pic
Speciahty catalysts for the
generation of clean fuels iM%  Quoted 28 4 32 64
GETECH Group plc
Gravity and magnetic data analysis
for the ail and gas industry 203%  Quoted 38 0.8 12
Other companies and unguoted fair value reductions 1.6 16
Total 16.8 130

* Values of unquoted companies are shown at price of recent invastment prior 10 any fair value reductions

(cf provisions)

During the year the Group made a seed
mvestment into Encos Limited a spin-out
company using technology from the
universities of Leeds and Nottingham,
which aims to replace concrete as a
structural matenial with fully sustainable
construction products made from 100%
recycled and industrial waste materials
Encos’ ultimate aim 15 to produce
construction products with a wide range
of praperties to suit different structural
applications, using far less energy than
traditional methods of manufacturing
bulding matenals The Group co-nvested

Announced fresh water production
began from its desalination plant
in Oman while its Gibraltar proving
plant, which began producing water

in September 2008, exceeded

expectations. Its Cymtox Limited

subsidiary received its first revenue

from sales of water toxicity
monitoring units in China.

at the seed stage with Sustainable
Resource Solutions Limited, ancther
Group portfolio company, which aims
to provide practicable solutions to waste
and resource management problems

13
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Chief Executive Officer’s statement {continued)

Portfolio review {(continued)

Chemicals & Materials

Company Value* of Group
Group stake value® hotding at
31 Decernber 31Decernber 31 December 31 December
2009 Guated/ 2009 2009 2008

Namefdescrphon % unquoted fm Em £m
llika Technologies Limited
High throughput materials discovery 23 6% Unquoted 295 70 70
Oxford Advanced Surfaces Group plc
Surface modification technologies
applicable to a broad range
of materals 154%  Quoted 37 5.7 45
Green Chemicals plc
Environmentally friendly
textiles and bleaching chemicals 244%  Quoted 108 30 61
Revolymer Limited
Revoiutionary polymer solutions 113% Unquoted 263 30 30
Other companies and unquoted farr value reductions 1.6 33

Total

20.3 239

* Values of unquoted companies are shown at price of recent investment prior £ any fair value reductions

{cf provisions)

Chemlcals & Materials

The decrease in the iair value of the
Chemicals & Matenals portfolio can be
largely attnibuted to the negative share
price movement of Green Chemicals plc,
which contributed an unrealised fair value
reduction of £31m during the period
This was offset to some degree by an
unrealised fair value gain in the Group s
halding in Oxford Advanced Surfaces
Group plc { OAS"), whose share price
Increase contributed £12m

llka Technologies Limited (“Ilika ) s based
on technology from the University of
Southampton and specialises in the use

of high throughput methods to accelerate
matenals development Ilika's approach
15 te partner with @ number of multinational

companies and during the year the
company extended its partnership
with Toyota Motor Company for the
development of next-generation hithium
ion batteries for use in electric and
hybrid vehicles and announced a joint
development project with CeramTec,
the world-leading ceramics company for
the development and commercialisation
of novel ceramic matenials

OAS, the advanced materials company,
announced m June that its Onto®
surface moedification technology had
facilitated a breakthrough in adhesion
for inert and low-surface energy
materials including PET and polyimide
polymers In January 2010, the company
announced a strengthening of its board

Medical Equipment & Supplies

Avacta Group ple

with Dr David Bott, previously Director
of Group Technology at ICl, joining as a
non-executive director Green Chemicals
share price reduction occurred despite
the unvelling of an ammenia-free
breakthrough hair bleaching and
cotouring system which 1s considered
safer and simpler than other permanent
dye products currently on the market

Elsewhere in the Chemicals & Matenals
portfolio, Xeros Lirmited, the company
behind the world's first virtually waterless”
washing machine technology, successfully
completed a Series A financing led by
Enterprise Ventures during the year
while Surrey NanoeSystems Limited,
which s developing a silicon-inendly
carbon nanotube growth process

for next-generation semiconductors,
secured a £2 5m further financing led

by Octopus Ventures

Medical Equipment & Supplies

The fair value of the Groups portfolio

of Medical Equipment & Supplies or
med tech” companies remained

stable during the period

The most significant transaction of 2009
for the Medhcal Equipment & Supplies
sector was the entering into by Oxford
Nanopore Technologres Limited ( ONP }
of a worldwide strategic allance with
NASDAQ-quoted lllumina Inc for the
development and commercialisation

of Its BASE™ Technology for super-fast
DMA seguencing lllumina Inc 15 a leading
developer manufacturer, and marketer
of next-generation life-science tools with
sales In 2009 in excess of $660m, and

Launched its flagship product ‘Optim/,

an analytical technology designed

to reduce risk in biopharmaceutical
development and help drug companies
bring optimised products to market

quicker and at lower cost. The

University of Leeds spin-out made
three acquisitions during the year.




provides a strong commercialisation
partner for ONP As part of this strategic
alliance, llumina invested $i8m (£11 8m}
alongside a further £21m from existing
shareholders at an uplit from the previous
investment round resulting 1n a fair value
gamn of £32m Foilowing the period end,
ONP announced a further £174m equity
financing from new and existing investors
including 1P Group and IP Venture Fund,
to accelerate the development of ONP's
electroric, single molecule analysis
technology This February 2010 investrent
was completed at a premiyvm to the
January 2009 round and will result

in a further £2 2m fair value gain to

the Group in 2010

The Group's halding in Avacta Group plc
(‘Avacta ) which develops detection and
analysis technology and services aimed
at the pharmaceutical healthcare, security
and industrial sectors, saw a fair value
reduction during the period of £17m
From an operational perspective, however,
Avacta has performed strongly during
the period Having announced a number
of acquisibions in the period, Avacta
launched its Avacta Animal Health
diviston and 1n September, anncunced
the first sale of its flagship Optim
diagnostic product aimed at reducing
risks and costs for tiopharmaceutical
developers Avacta s also on track

to launch its MIDAS animal diagnostic
platform in early 2010 and completed

a £2 0m placing during 04 2009

to support roll-out of the product

Medical Equipment & Supplies

Comgany Value* of Group
Group stake value” hoiding at
31 December JiDecemoer 31 December  31Decernber
2009 Ouoted/ 2009 2009 2008

Name/descnption % unquoted Em Em £m
Oxford Nanopore
Technologies Limited
Nanopore technology used for
super-fast genome sequencing 28 8% Unquoted 789 227 195
Avacta Group plc
Specialist detection and analysis
technologies and services 178%  Quoted 154 27 39
Tissue Regenix Limited
Regenerative medical devices 281% Unguoted 69 1.9 19
Retroscreen Virology Limited
Specialist virology contract
research organisation 18 0% Unquoted 79 1.3 1
Other companies and unguoted fair value reductions 23 37
Total 30.9 301

* Values of unquoted companies are shown at price of recent investment pricr te any fair value reductions

(cf provisions)

The technology behind Tissue Regenix
Limited a developer of regenerative
medical devices was highlighted in
Cctober 2009 as being at the centre
ofa £50m 50 active years after 50
research inifiative being carnied out by
the University of Leeds The company s
lead preduct, the dCELL® Vascular Patch
15 currently undergoing a clirical tnaln
Europe In parallel Tissue Regenix 1s also
developing a pipeline of further dCELL®
products that address chimical needs In
fields such as orthopaedics {(meniscal
repair, ltigaments) and cardiac surgery
{heart valves)

During the period, Retroscreen Viralogy
Limited the global leading CRO in anti-viral
research clinical trials and experimental
challenge studies founded by Professor
John Oxford, announced a successful

£2 6m Seres B financing led by
Aquarius Equity Partners Limited

in conjunction with IP Venture Fund
Retroscreen's sales have grown by over
66% 1 the last three years. generating
revenues of over £5m in the year

to 31 July 2009, and resulting 1n the
company being included n the Sunday
Times 2009 Tech Track 100 which ranks
the fastest growing private technology
companies in 8ritain by sales growth
over g three year period

Well financed
portfolio companies

“The Group's portfolio companies
raised in excess of £80m
iIncluding over £58m from

public markets.”

15
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Portfolio review (continued)

Pharma & Biotech

Company Vatue® of Group
Group stake value™ heldang at
31 December 3iDecember 31 December  31Decernber
2009 Quoted/ 2009 2009 2008

Name/description % unguoted £m £m Em
Photopharmica {(Holdings) Limited
Wound treatment using hght
{photodynamic therapy or PDT")  499% Unquoted 260 13.0 130
Proximagen Neuroscience plc
Treatments for neurodegenerative
disorders such as Parkinson'sdisease  82%  Quoted 602 4.9 71
Synairgen plc
Developing new drugs for
respiratory diseases 108%  Quoted 194 241 10
Syntopix Group pic
Topical antimicrobials for healthcare
and pharmaceutical applications 187% Quoted 58 11 1
Other compamies and unquoted fair value reductions 3.8 50
Total 249 272

* Values of unguoted companies are shown at price of recent investment prier to any fair value reductions

{cf provisions)

Pharma & Blotech

The Group's Pharma & Biotech pertfoho
experienced a imited level of unrealised
fair value losses during 2009 (£15m,
2008 £S2m) predominantly due to a
£2 Imunrealised farr value loss arising
from a reduction in Preximagen
Neuroscience pic s ("Proximagen’)
share price over the period

Buiiding on the successful licensing

of Its PRX1 Parkinson’s programme

with Upsher-Smith Labroratories Inc
during 2008 Proximagen significantly
strengthened its business in a number
of ways during 2009 Having announced
the appointment of Peter Allen, previously
CFO of Celltech Group as 1ts new

Net assets
stable

non-executive charman in February 2009
{scurced through Stuart Thompson of

IP Exec), the company completed a £50m
placing This placing provided capital for
further in-icensing and development to
commercialisation of drug development
programmes for diseases of the central
nervous system In October Proximagen
announced its first acquisttion, the
purchase of Cambridge Biotechnology Lid
and certain drug development programmes
from Biovitrum AB, providing Proximagen
with a number of clinical and pre-chnical
stage assets Following the penod end,

N January 2010, Proximagen announced
its recornmended cash offer for Minster
Pharmaceuticals plc, whose two principal
assets focusing on neurological and

“The value of the Group's
portfolio of 63 companies
stabilised during the year
and 1s valued at £1013m.”

psychiatric disorders, benefit from
comprehensive safety data having been
previously acquired from GlaxoSmithKline
Following this acquisition, Proximagen will
have a broad portfolio of 16 programmes
ranging from discovery, through pre-clinical
and chnical stages

Photopharmica Holdings Limited
('Photopharmica’) the spin-out
company irom the University of Leeds
which 1s developing pharmaceutical
products using photodynamic therapy,
received MHRA regulatory approval for
its repeat dose Phase Il leg ulcer tnal for
its lead compound PPAS04 In late 2008
and recruited its first patients during the
second quarter of 2009 The company
received further externzl validation
during Aprif that no bacterial resistance
to PPAS04 photodynamic therapy
developed even under sustamned
conditions Further developments from
the trial are anticipated during 2010

Both Syntopix Group plc ("Syntopix )
and Synairgen plc made positive progress
during 2009, with the latter's strong share
price performance resulting in g fair value
gain of E1lm during the year Having
successfully raised £6 3m through a
placing in May, Synairgen continued
development of its respiratory drug
programmes with the second half of 2009
seeing the patent for the company s lead
compound, Interferon-beta, being granted
in the US positive Phase 1 safety results
being achieved and anti-viral proof of
mechanism being canfirmed Synairgen
15 currently prepaning for comrmencement
of Phase Il tnals in Spring 2010, with the
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scope of the first study being widened
to include flu

Syntopix meanwhile continues to
progress the commercial applications
of its topical antimicrobial innovations
adding a second twelve month exclusive
evaluation agreement with @ major
consumer healthcare company to that
signed with Procter & Gamble during
2008 In November the company
announced positive results inits Phase lI
randomised bhinded cosmetic study In
subjects with acneic skin and is currently
planning an equity 1ssue in order to fully
progress its commercial opportunities

During the period the Group reahsed
£0 25m of cash through the disposal

of Its holding in Summit Corporation pic
This realisation represents a cash on
cash return of approximately ten times,
following the Groups initial Investment
of £25,000 during 2003

IT & Communications

The Group's holdings In 1T &
Commurications portfallo companies
increased to a far value of E49m

at 31 December 2009 (2008 £43m)
This was largely sttnbutable to an increase
in the share price of AlM-listed CCTV
and surveillance technology company
Coe Group plc ("Coe "), of £05m

In the latter pari of 2008 Coe raticnalised
Its cost base and raised almost £10m
(before expenses) by way of aplacing
to strengthen its balance sheet and
enable It to take advantage of developing
sales opportunities During 2009 this

IT & Communications

Tracsis ple

The provider of planning software
to the transport industries, and a

IT & Communications

Company Vahie* of Group
Group stake value® halding at
31 December 31Decernber 31 December 31 December
2009 Quoted/ 2009 2009 2008

Name/description % unquoted £m £Em £m
Tracsls ple
Crew scheduling software
for the transportation industry 194%  Quoted 94 18 18
Coe Group plc
CCTV and survelllance technology  348%  Quoted 28 10 05
Icona Solutions Limited
Software to improve
perceved qualty 41 2% Unguoted 1 04 04
Other companies and unguoted fair value reductions 17 16
Total 49 43

= Values of unguoted companies are shown at price of recent investment pricr to any fair value reductions

{cf provisions)

strategy began to bear fruit as the
company announced a number of
commercial partnerships and contract
awards ncluding a £1m contract to
prowvide the video survelllance solution
for ines 1, 3 and 4 of the Seoul Metropolitan
Subway network In Novernber 2009,
Coe announced a full year profit for the
year to 30 June 2009 compared to a
loss of £1m in the prior year

Tracsis plc, the scheduling software
company for the transportation industry
continued to grow revenues and
operating profits in 2009 and further
consolidated its market position through
two strateqic acquisttions In July Tracsis
acquired Peeping Limited, a company
which provides research based services
to train operating companies, and this
was followed by the announcement

in December that it was to acquire Safety

spin-out from the University of Leeds,
made two acquisitions in the year -
Peeping Ltd and Safety Information

Systems Ltd - to strengthen its
offering to transport companies.

Information Systems Limited, a data
analysis, process control and managerent
reporting software developer

lcona Solutions Lirmited continued to
develop its nnovative Percerved Quality
simulation and visualisation software
solution, aesthetica As well as a number
of software developments the company
announced in March that Bentley Motors
had implemented Icona's aesthetica
software, in order to streamiine and
improve the process of achieving
consistently high Perceived Quality

in Bentley Motors’ vehicles without
negatively impacting development
timescales and manufacturing costs

M
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Chief Executive Officer's statement (continued)

Financial review

Statement of comprehensive income
A summary analysis of the Groups
performance 1s provided below

2009 2008
£m £m

Net portfolio losses (2 3) {(350)
Cther income 15 19
Administrative expenses

- Modern businesses* (0.3) 29
Administrative expenses
- all other businesses (5.6} (6 6)

Finance income 0.6 22
Loss and total

comprehensive income

for the perlod {6.1) (40 4)

* Modern businesses administrative expenses are
stated net of R&D tax credits

Portfolio gains consist primarily of realised
and unreahised fair value gains and |csses,
as well as any dividends or other distribution

The Group will benefit from additional
venture capital fund management fee

income in 201G following the appointment
of the Group as manager of the £25m North

East Technology Fund in January 2010

As a result of the restructuring carried
out 1n late 2008 the cost base of the

business has reduced with adminisirative

costs, excluding those attributable to

the Group's drug discovery subsidiary,
Modern Bigsciences plc { MBS ) Eim

lower than in 2008

Asn prior years, administrative expenses

include a number of non-cash charges
totalling £11m (2008 £10m} including

an IFRS 2 share-based payments charge

of £0 ém relating to the Group’s Long
Term Incentive Plan {2008 £06m)
This charge 1s designed o refliect the
fair value of services received from

was £03m (2008 £29m} The Group
currently intends to deploy hmited
further capital for the early-stage
pre-clinical development of these

two assets which seek to address

the significant global markets of
age-related macular degeneration
("AMD") and rheumatoid arthritis

As anticipated in the 2008 Annual
Repart, finance income decreased
significantly to £06m (2008 £22m)
primarily due to significantly lower
nterest rates m the UK during 2009
It 15 expected that the Group s future
finance income will fluctuate broadly
in ine with future interest rate changes

Statement of financial position
The Group continues to have a strong
halance sheet with cash and deposits

of £281m (2008 £33 3m), no borrowings
and a diversified portfolio of investments
In private and publicly-hsted companies

income received from portfolio companies

employees, measured by referen
A detailed analysis of fair value gains oy by reference to

the fair value of the share-based payments

IP Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2009

www Ipgroupplic com/reports

and losses I1s provided in the Portfolio
review above

Other income for the year decreased
to £15m (2008 £19m) largely due to
reduced private placement fees during
the period (£0im 2008 EO03m)and a
slight reduction in venture camtal fund
management fees (£10m, 2008 £11m)
as one of the funds managed by the
Group moves fully into its realisations
penod where lower fees are charged

at the date of award. but has no net
impact on the Group’s total equity
or net assets

During 2009 the Group deployed limited
canttal to continue developrment of MBS's

two lead programmes, Rimcazole and
OstecRx, while reducing operating
overheads to an abseolute mmimum
The net cost o the business of this
development, following the receipt

of a cash R&D tax credit of £03m
during the pertod (2008 EQ1m),

across five distinct seciors

The value of the Group's portfolio of

63 companies has stabilised during

the year and Is valued at £101 3m as

at 31 Decemnber 2009 (2008 £98 4m,
74 companies) A detailed report on
the Groups portfolio of equity and debt
investments, Including key developments
and moverments dunng the period
1s provided in the Portfolio review
on pages 10 to 17
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The Group's batance sheet includes
goodwili of £18 4m (2008 £18 4m)

and an equity rights asset of £199m
{2008 £199m} The goodwill balances
arose as a result of the Group s historical
acqurstions of Techtran Group (university
partnership business £163m, 2008 £16 3m)
and Top Technelogy Ventures (venture
capital fund management business,
£21m 2008 £21m) while the equity
rights asset represents amounts patd

to the University of Oxford giving the
Group the right to receive 50% of the
unwversity s entitlernent {o equity in any
spin-out company or of any licensing
income emanating from the University
of Oxford s Chemistry Department entil
2015 The carrying values of these assets
have been reviewed during the pericd
and the directors do not believe these
assets tc be impaired Further details

are provided in notes and 15 to

the Group financial statements

Due to the nature of its activities, the
Group has limited current assets or
current habihties other than its cash
and short-term deposit balances, which
are considered in more detall opposite

Cash and short-term deposlts

The principal constituents of the movement
in cash and short-term deposits balances
during the penod can be summansed

as follows

2009 2008
£m £€m

Net cash used in

operating activities 2.7 (35)

Net cash used In

investing activities (2.5) 92)

Issued share capitat - -

Movement

during period (52) 127

While the overall level of cash deployment
has reduced during the period the Group
has continued to ncubate and invest In
new university spin-out opportunifies
and has maintained some participation

in follow-on funding rounds where
appropriate The Group invested £57m
across 20 opportunibies during the
pertod (2008 £8 6m, 40} This included
the Group's £2 9m investrment into
fusion IP plc although, since this was
financed through the 1ssue of vendoer-placed
new share capital, the associated cash
flows are not reflected in the Group's
statement of cash flows The Group
made modest realisations of £05m
during the penod (2008 ENIl) and the
net cash used in investing activities
reduced to £2 5m (2008 £92m)

Strong balance

sheet

"The Group continues to have
a strong balance sheet with
cash and deposits of £28.1m,
no borrowings and a diversified
portfolio of investments”

As in previous years, the directors have
applied the Group's stringent qualfication
criteria to its investment opportunities
at all stages of company maturity and
will continue to do so in the future The
Group has discretion over the level of
cash deployed into portiolio opporturuties
and regularly reviews this leve! based

on the economic environment, likely
capital requirements of the portfolio

and volume of attractive intellectual
property commercialisation opportunities

It 15 the Group's palicy to place cash which
15 surplus to near term working capital
raquirements in low-risk treasury funds
rated 'AA" or above, or on short-term
and overnight deposits with financial
institutions that meet the Groups
treasury policy criteria as detaited in
ncte 2 to the Group financial statements
The Group has no borrowings or foreign
currency deposits

Taxation

The Group's directors continue to believe
that the Group qualifies for the Substantial
Shareholdings Exemption ( SSE™) on
chargeable gains ansing on the dispesal
of gualifying holdings and, as such, the
Group has continued not to recognise

a provision for deferred taxation in
respect of uplifts in value on equity stakes
which meet the qualifying criteria

Alan Aubrey
Chuef Executive Officer
1 March 2010
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Board of directors

Dr Bruce Smith, CBE

Non-executive Chairman

Bruce 15 Chairman of the Councii of Smith Institute for Industral
Mathematics and System Engineering He was the Chairman and
majonity shareholder of Smith System Engineering Limited untid 1997
Bruce i1s a fellow of the Royal Academy of Engineering the Institute
of Engineering and Technelogy {IET) and the Institute of Physics
Bruce became a director of IP Group in September 2002

Alan Aubrey, FCA

Chief Executive Officer

Alan established Techtran Group Limited in 2002 and was its

CEO when the business was acquired by P Group in January 2005
Previously he was & pariner in KPMG where he specialised in
corporate finance advice to technology-based fast growth businesses
and has significant experience at heiping them raise money and
prepare for sale or flotation Alan joined the Board of IP Group in
January 2005, becoming Chief Executive on 1 January 2006 and has
averall responsibility for the operational management of the Group

Dr Alison Fielding

Chief Technology Officer

Alison ¢o-founded Techtran Group Limited and was the Chuef Operating
Qfficer of Techtran when it was acquired by 1P Group in January 2005
Previously, she spent five years at McKinsey & Co where sha consulted
primanly to the pharmaceutical and health care sectors Prior to McKinsey
Ahson spent four years as a development chemist for Zeneca performing
technical roles in the speciality chemicals and agrochemicals divisicns
Alison holds an MBA from Manchester Business School, a PhD in
organic chemustry and a first class degree (n chemistry from the
Uruversity of Glasgow

Mike Townend

Director of Capital Markets

Mike was formerly Managing Cirector within the European Equities
bustness of Lehman Brothers with responsibility for eguity sales to
hedge funds Mike has over 17 years of expertence n all aspects of
equity capital markets Mike was appointed a director of [P Group
In March 2007

Top row, left te right Dr Bruce Smith Alan Aubrey, Dr Alison Fielding Mike Townend

Magnus Goodlad

Chief Operating Cfficer

Magnus joined Top Technology Ventures Limited IP Groups Fund
Management business 1 June 2000 after four and a hali years
with Slaughter and May practising a wide range of corporate, banking
and finance law Magnus was appointed a director of IP Group in
March 2006

Professor Graham Richards, CBE

Senlor Non-executive Director

Graham was the scientific founder of Oxford Molecular Group plc
and was for 20 years a director of the University of Oxford technology
transfer company, Isis Innavation Limited Graham was Chairman of
Chemistry in the University of Oxford until 30 June 2006 Graham
became a non-executive director of IP Group in December 2001 and
Chairman in August 2004 He became Senior Non-Executive Director
on 1 January 2006

Roger Brooke

Non-executive Director

Roger founded Candover Investments and built it into one of the
UK s foremost venture capital businesses He retired from Candover
as Chairman in May 1999 His previous directorships include EMI
Beeson Gregory Group plc and he was previously Chairman of

the Audit Commussion Roger became a director of 1P Group

in December 2001

Francls Carpenter

Non-executive Director

Francis was Chief Executive Officer of the European Investment Fund,
holding that role for nearly six years until his retirement at the end of
February 2008 Francis joined the European Inwestment Bank 1n 1975
and held a vanety of roles Including Secretary General Director of
Credit Risk Management and Director of Lending in the UK Ireland
North Sea and Portugal Francis became a director of IP Group in
April 2008

Bottom row, left to right Magnus Geodlad Professor Graham Richards Roger Brooke Francis Carpenter
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Adverse climate changa and increased environmental degradation are very real threats to both the present and the future
Sustainability forms a core component of our business philosophy and we firmly recognise our respensibility to ensure that
our business continues to operate in a sustainable manner

This statement provides an overview of how the Group cperates in a sustainability context, focusing on the steps we are taking
as a company both to befter understand our impact and, in the long term, firmly embed sustainability considerations into all of
our decision-making processes

About IP Group
The principal activities of the Group are the commeraialisation of intellectual property generated from its partner universities
principally through the formation of, and investment i spin-out companies

The Group operates out of two main office locations inthe UK and during 2009 employed an average of 35 people (2008 54)

Sustainabiity features prommnently in our investment agenda and we actively pursue opportunities that have the potential to improve
the ervironment we live in and benefit scciety s wellbeing on a global scate In healthcare the Group has established companies
seeking to develop diagnostics and therapeutics across a wide range of disease areas including cancer, iver diseases, asthma and
Alzheimer's disease The Group has also formed and invested in @ number of companies that are pioneering the development of
both clean technologies and research in the water, waste management and construction sectors

Qur commitment to the environment

The direct environmenial tmpact of the Group and its subsidiary companies is relatively low The business operates from a small number
of offices and employs less than 40 pecple, with the majonty of our work being office based The Group does, however, remain cornmitted
to ensuring that the environmental impacts of the business operations are minimised and reduced wherever possible In 2008, we
undertook a review of the environmental impacts of our operations and produced a Group Environmental Policy which 1s monitored
at Board level and reviewed annually This pohcy 1s communicated to all new staff upon induction into the business

Minimising our direct impact on the environment
We are commiiied to

* promoting Resource Efficiency and the management of waste generated from our business operations according to the principles of
the Waste Management Hierarchy We priontise the management of our waste in the following order prevention, minimisation, reuse,
recycling recovery and finally disposal Recycling facilitres and waste awareness materials are present in alf of our office locations

* maximising the use of public transport for business travel and minimising business airline travel,

* working in partnership with our staff suppliers landlords and their agents to promote improved energy performance and
energy efficiency and

* wherever appropriate, make use of recycled and recyclable consumables and materials, including promotional and
marketing documeniation

Understanding the indirect environmental impacts of our business activities

As previgusly mentiened, the Groups day-to-day operational activities have a imited impact on the environment We do however
recognise that the more significant iImpact occurs indirectly, through the investment decisions we make and the operation of the
compantes we choose to Invest in The Group therefore considers it important to establish and invest in businesses which comply
with existing applicable enwironmental, ethical and social legislation it (s also important that these businesses can demonstrate that
an appropriaie strategy i1s in place to meet {uture applicable legislative and regulatory requirements and that these businesses can
operate to specifrc indusiry standards, striving for best practice

Major investment themes for IP Group have included, and will continue to include, business opportunities focused on developing
¢lean technology environmental improvement and resource efficiency Two case studies, Sustainable Resource Solutions Limited
and Encos Limited have been included to highlight how our investment decisions are linked to the Global Environmental and
Sustainability agenda

Sustainable Resource Solutions Limited

Developed and developing countrigs continue (o produce waste in significant quantities and have yet
to de-couple economic growth from waste production At the same time natural and finite resources
continue to be diminished In an attempt to satisfy increasing levels of consumer demand

In recognition of this problem, developed countries have enacted a raft of legislation aimed at minimising and/or recovering value
from waste material and to promote the use of secondary (recycled} matenals in new products For example, Pan-Eurcpean legisiation
1S now In place to ensure a consistent level of environmental protection whilst enshrining resource efficiency

Sustainable Resource Solutions Limited 1s an integrated resource management company which uniquely designs, develops and
implements process change and/or technelogy to deliver enhanced environmental outcomes Sustainable Resource Solutions
1s currently working with some of the largest private and public sector companies 1n the United Kingdom delivering mnovative
resource efficiency solutions which not only result n improved environmental performance, but which also provide both
considerable revenue generation and cost reduction opportunities
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Understanding the indirect environmental impacts of our business activities (continued)

Encos Limited

Construction is a major contnbutor to the global carbon dioxide emissions In parallel, the disposal
of waste to land fill 1s becoming increasingly unacceptable Many governments, including the UK,
are introducing increasingly tough legislation to address these two demands

Encos Limited ( Encos ) 1s developing sustainable construction products, made frorm 100% recycled matenals with a fraction of
the carbon footprint of conventional bricks and blocks Encos has partnerships with major waste management and construction
companies and 15 1n the process of commissioning a piiet production facility

The Encos product will provide a sustainable replacement to conventional bullding matenals but altow companies to retain building
technmigues and skills that have been developed over centuries

Further qualitative and quantitative details of the Group's investments in companies in the Energy & Renawables and Chemicals & Materials
sectors are detalled in the Portfolo review

Our business ethics and social responsibility

The Group seeks to conduct all of 1ts operating and business activities in & socially responsible manner and, in all such activities for
its directors and employees to maintain integrity and professionalism, to be commercial and fair and to have due regard to the interest
of all of its stakeholders including tvestors, university partners, employees suppliers and the businesses in which the Group invests
All employees who are involved with the regulated business of managing investment transactions receive compliance and money
laundering traiming with periodic refresher courses

The Group s management and employees are fundamental to our success and as a result we are committed to encouraging
the ongoing devetopment of our staff with the aim of maximising the Group's overall performance Emphasis is placed on staff
development through work-based learning with senior members of staff acting as coach and mentor

The Group seeks to operate as a responsible employer and has adopted standards which promote corporate values designed to
help and guide emplayees in their conduct and business refationships The Group seeks to comply with all laws, requlations and
rules applicable to its business and to conduct the business in ine with applicable established best practice

Our employees are encouraged to consider social 1ssues and the Group 1s supportive of employees pursuing roles with charitable
organisations As part of this imtiative, the Group works with the Brightside Trust, a chanity aimed at bringing educational opportunities
to children from disadvantaged backgrounds Group employees are given the opportunity to participate in schemes such as the

Confident Futures’ programme which involves mentoring young people in care to support their progress into further education
or employment, or the "Scientists in Schools” programme to help raise the aspirations and interest of underprivileged school
students in the scences
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Directors' report

Report of the directors
The directors present their report together with the audited financial statements for IP Group plc (the Company™) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”} for the year ended 3t December 2009

Princlpal activities

The Company acts as a holding company for the Group and 15 Incorporated by shares in England and Wales The Company's subsidiary
undertakings are detailed in note 2 to the Company's financial statements The business of the Group s (1) the commercialisation
and exploitation of ntellectual property wa the formation of long term parinerships with universities, (i1} the management of venture
funds focusing on early-stage UK technology companies, and (i) the in-licensing of drugable intellectual property from research
Intensive institutrons

Results and dividends

During the period the Group made an overall loss after taxation for the year ended 31 December 2009 of £6 1m (2008 £404m)
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2008 ENIl}

Directors
The names of directors who held office during 2009 are as follows

Executive Directors
Alan Aubrey

Abson Fielding

Ma gnus Goodlad
Mike Townend

Mon-executive Directors
Bruce Smith (Chairman)
Graham Richards

Roger Brooke

Francis Carpenter

Detalls of the interests of directors 1n the share capital of the Company are set out in the Cirectors’ Rermuneration Report on pages 26 to 29

Business review
The information that fulfils the requirements of the Business review as required by the Companies Act 2006 (the CA 2006"),
and which should be treated as formtng part of this report by reference, 1s Included 1n the following sections of the annual report

» Charman's statement on pages 4 and 5,

« Chief Executive Officer s statement on pages 6 to 18 which together include a review of the Groups external environment, key
strategic aims, main trends and factors likely to affect the future development, perfarmance and position of the Group’s business

Corporate responsibility report on pages 21 and 22 which includes information about environmental matters, employees and social
and community 1ssues

Corporate Governance and Direciors' Remuneration Report on pages 26 to 36 including details of the Company s rules relating
to the appointment and replacement of directors, and

» details of the principal operating subsidraries are set out in note 2 to the Company s financial staternents
Key performance indicators and a description of principal risks and uncertainbies facing the Group are set out below
Key performance indicators

2009 2008
Total equity ("net assets”} (Em) 1710 1738
Loss attrbutable to equity holders (£Em) (6.1} (403)
Change in farr value of equity and debt investments (Em) 1.4) (355)
Cash, cash equivalents and deposits (Em) 281 333
Proceeds from sale of equity investments (Em) 0.5 -
Purchase of equity and debt investments (Em} 57 92
Number of new portfolio companies (number) 4 12
IP Group plc share price performance (% change) 5.6 {509)
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Directors’ report (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties and financial instruments

The Group through its operations 1s exposed to a number of risks The Group's risk management objectives and polictes are described
in the Corporate Governance report on pages 33 to 35 Further information on the Group's financial risk management objectives
and policies including those in relatton to credit nisk, hquidity nisk and market risk 1s provided in note 2 to the consoldated financial
staterments along with further information on the Group's use of inanoial instrements

Significant agreements

The Group has entered into vanous agreements to form partnerships with ten UK universities granting Group entities nights to
purchase or recelve shares in new companies founded by acadermcs at these universities further, Group entities have entered into
agreements to act as general partner and investment manager to two imited partnerships, as detailed in note 1to the consolidated
financiat statements and further agreements {ollowing the period end In relation to the North East Technology Fund LP These agreements
generally contain change of control provisions which, in the event of a change of ownership of the Group, could result in renegotiation
or termination of the agreements

There are a number of other agreements that may alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Group following a takeover bid
such as commercial contracts None 1s considered to be significant in terms of their potential impact on the business of the Group
as a whole

Share capital and related matters

Detalls of the structure of the Company s share capital and the rights attaching to the Company’s shares are set out in note 20

to the consoldated financial statements There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding or on the transfer of shares
which are both governed by the general prowisions of the Company s Articles of Association (the “Articles”) and prevailing tegislation

At the last general meeting, held on 28 Aprl 2009, authority was given to the directors to allot unissued relevant securities in the
Company up to a maximum amount eguivalent to approximately 33% of the shares in 1ssue at any time up to the earlier of the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting ("AGM ) of the Company and 27 Apnl 2010 The directors partially used this authority in allotting
and 1ssuing new crdinary shares in connection with the acquisition of 19 8% of Fusion IP ple as described in note 20 Further the directors
were given authority effective for the same period to allot relevant securities in the Company up to a maximumm amount equivalent

to 33% of the shares in 1ssue 1n connection with an offer by way of & fully pre-emptive nights 1ssue No shares have been issued
pursuant to this authenity The directors propose to renew these authorities at the Company's next AGM to be held on 27 April 2010

The authorities being sought are in accordance with recent guidance i1ssued by the Association of British Insurers

A further special resolution passed at that meeting granted authonty to the directors to allot equity securities in the Company for
cash, without regard to the pre-emption provisions of the Comparies Act 1985 both in connection with a fully pre-emptive rights 1ssue
and up to a maximum of approximately five percent of the shares i 1ssue at any ime up to the earlier of the conclusion of the next
AGM of the Company and 27 April 2010 The directors partially used this authority in allotting and 1ssuing new ordinary shares in
connechion with the acquisition of 19 8% of Fusion IP plc as described in note 20 The directors will seek to renew this authorty

for a simular period at the next AGM

Under the CA 2006, the Company 15 ne lenger reqguired 10 have enabling provisions inaits Articles giving it power to purchase its own
shares Accordingly these have been removed from the new Articles proposed te be adopted at the AGM and the powers will then be
contained in Part 18 Chapter 5 of the CA 2006 The directors have no existing authority to purchase the Company's own shares

Articles of Assoclation
The Cormpany s Articles may be amended ty a special resolution of the shareholders As at the date of this report the Company's ‘
Artictes include a qualifying third party indemnity provision { OTPIP") within the meaning of Section 234 of the CA 2006

Substantial shareholders ‘
As at 1 March 2010 the Company had been advised of the following shareholders with interests of 3% or more 1n its ordinary share capital

Other than as shown so far as 1s known, o other person holds or 1s beneficially interested in a disclosable interest in the Company |

%
Lansdowne Partners 163
BlackRock, Inc 154 :
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company S8
FIL Limited (Fidelity} 92
Standard Life Investrments Limited 57
Legal & General Investment Management 44

Payment of trade payables

It 1s the Group s current policy to establish payment terms with suppliers when agreeing terms of supply, to ensure that supphers
are made aware of the terms of payment and to adhere to those terms The Group's average trade payable payment period at
31 December 2009 was 25 days (2008 13 days) The Company had trade payables of £01m (2008 £01m) at 31 December 2009

Charitable and political donations
During 2009 the Group did not make any chantable donations (2008 £30,000) The Group did not make any political donations
In elther year
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Post balance sheet events

COn 22 January 2010 the Group announced that it had won the mandate to manage the North East Technology Fund {ihe “Fund "),

a £25m venture capital fund that will invest in technology companies in the North East region from seed through to growth stages
of development including opportunities from the leading research universities based in the region The Group will receive management
fees and has the potential to generate performance fees from successful investment of the Fund In addition, the Group will be able
to co-invest alongside the Fund in appropriate opportunities

Cn 1 February 2010 Oxford Nanopaore Technologies Limited announced a further £17 4m equity financing fram new and existing
investors including IP Group and IP Venture Fund, to accelerate the development of its electronic, single molecule analysis technology
This February 2010 invesiment was completed at a premium to the Januwary 2009 round and will result in a further £2 2m fair value
gain to the Group in 2010

Disclosure of Information to auditors

All of the current directors have taken all the steps that they oughi to have taken to make themselves aware of any information
needed by the Group s auditors for the purposes of their audit and to estabhish that the auditors are aware of that information
The directors are not aware of any relevant audit infermation of which the auditers are unaware

Appolntment of auditors
BDO LLP offerfhemselves for re-appointment as auditors and an appropriate resotution will be put to the shareholders at the AGM

Y
Chuef Executive Officer
1 March 2010
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Directors' Remuneration Report

The Directors Remuneration Report has been prepared in accordance with requirerents of the CA 2006

The Company s remuneration policy 1s the responsibility of the Board of Directors The Remuneration Commuttee provides recommendations
to the Board of Directors on the Group's remuneration policy This Remuneration Cormnmittee consists exclusively of non-executive directors
1s chared by Graham Richards and also comprises Bruce Smith and Roger Brooke Graham Richards and Roger Brooke are considered
to be independent directors and the Remuneration Committee 1s authorised, if it wishes to seek independent specialist services to
provide information and advice on remuneration at the Company's expense

The Remuneraiion Commuttee has speciiic responsibility for advising the Group s Board on the remuneration and other benefits of
executive directors an overall policy (n respect of remuneration of other employees of the Group and establishing the Groups policy
with respect to employee incentivisation schemes In advising the Group's Board on executive remuneration packages of individual
directors, the Remuneration Comrmittee takes account of the levels of experience, performance and responstbility of each director,
and the remuneratton packages for sumilar executive positions in companies it considers are comparable |t also considers the
remuneration packages offered within the Group as a whole

Remuneration policy

a) Executive remuneration

The committee aims to ensure that the remuneration of executive directors 15 competitive, takes into account individual performance
and provides a package which 15 sufficiently dependent on achievement to motivaie and incentivise the individual executive directors
Executive remuneration currently comprises a base salary which is not performance related, an entitlerment to private medical nsurance,
permanent health imsurance, Iife assurance and pension contributions to individual money purchase schemes an equity bonus scheme
and a Long Term Incentive Plan The Board believes that the inferests of directors and shareholders are best aligned with a remuneration
pelcy that provides a base salary that i1s not dependent on performance together with a discretionary bonus arrangement Further details
relating to bonus arrangements, pension contributions and the Long Term Incentive Plan are detarled below

Bonuses

The Group operates a bonus incentive scheme linked to the equity recerved as a result of investments made by the Group (the “equity
bonus scheme ) The Group accrues for employee bonuses at a cost o the Group of up to175% of the fair value of investments made
and equity received by the Group Cash bonuses are payable on a discretionary basis in recognition of exceptional performance not
otherwise recognised through existing schemes Bonus awards are based on performance within the Group and/or at the relevant
individual portfolio company level No cash bonuses have been paid to executive directors in respect of the year ended 31 December 2009
(2008 £NiIl}

Carried interest

The Group allocates carried interest in funds managed by the Group to executive directors and other key staff based on the leve!
of Involvement and contribution of the relevant members of the team to the management of the fund Details of allocations made
to the execuitve directors are set out below

Pensions
The executive directors are entitled to a contribution of annual salary which 1s capped at 10% and paid directly into personal money
purchase pension plans

Share options
It 1s the policy of the Group not to 1ssue new options over ordinary shares in the Company No new options over shares were issued
during the vear ended 31 December 2009

b} Non-executive remuneration

Each of the non-executive directors receves a fixed fee for service which covers preparation for and attendance at meetings of
the full Board and all committees thereof The non-executive directors are also reimbursed for all reascnable expenses ncurred
in attending these meetings Non-executive directors are not enhitled to participate in any of the Groups incentive schemes,
including the Long Term Incentive Plan and bonus schemes The executive directors are responsible for setting the level of
non-executive remuneration




27

Remuneration policy (continued)

c) Long Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP™)

The LTIP and employee share ownership trust were approved by shareholders at the AGM i 2007 (the 2007 LTIP") All employees
including full-tirme executive directors, of the Group are eligible to participate in the LTIP at the discretion of the Remuneration Commuitiee
Awards will take the form of provisional awards of ordinary shares of 2p each in the Group The maxirmum value of shares (as at the
relevant dates of award) over which anindividua! may receive awards under the LTIP over any three consecutive financial years shall
not exceed four times his or her basic annual rate of pay without the approvat of the Remuneration Committee

Awards will generally vest over three years following the date on which they are made to the extent that performance conditions have been
met The Remuneration Committee will impose abjective conditions on the vesting of awards and it I1s proposed that such conditions
will be imposed to reflect the guidelines of institutional invesiors from time to time At present it 1s intended that the performance
conditions for future grants will be based on the Group’s total shareholder return (*TSR ) performance The awards granted to date
will vest in full after three years in the event of TSR growth of 15% per annum on a cumulative basis being achieved 50% of an award
granted in 2007 will vest in the event of cormpound annua! TSR growth of 10% being achieved with a shding scale between these points

Further details retating to 2007 LT!P awards io executive directors are detalled below It 15 considered hkely that the provisional awards
made to the executive directors pursuant to the 2007 LTIP will expire without vesting in May 2010 1t 1s anbicipated that a revised
equity-related incentivisation structure will be presented for approval at the Group s 2010 AGM

d) Service contracts

Alan Aubrey and Alison Fielding have service contracts which commenced on 20 January 2005 and contain a contractual notice
period of six menths by either party Magnus Goodlad has a service contract which commenced on 30 June 2004 and contains a
contractual notice period of six months by either party Mike Townend has a service contract which commenced on 5 March 2007
and contains a contractual notice penod of six months by either party The contracts for executive directors do not provide any
predetermined amounts of compensation in the event of early termination In the event of early termination, payments for loss
of office would be determined by the Remuneration Committee who would take account of the particular circumstances of each
case, Including the unexpired term of the service contract

The nen-execubive directors have letters of appointment which are dated 10 August 2004 1n the case of Graham Richards,
3 September 2007 in the case of Bruce Smith, 29 September 2003 in the case of Roger Brocke and 3 April 2008 in the case
of Francis Carpenter Each appointment 1s for an initial term of three years, renewable for a further three years The non-executive
service agreements are terminable on three months' notice by either party save in the case of Roger Brooke whose agreement 1s
terminable on one month s notice by either party

Executive directors may accept other outside non-executive appoiniments Where an executive director accepts an appointment to
the board of a company 1n which the Group 1s a shareholder the Group generally retains the relaied fees Fees earned for directorships
of companies in which the Group does not have a shareholding are normally retained by the director

Directors' emoluments
The following 1s part of the Directors Remuneration Report and 15 subject to audit

The aggregate remuneration received by directors who served during the year including remuneration paid through subsicianes
of the Company was as follows

Total Total Total Total §

{excluding {Including (excluding ancluding E_

Base Equity pension) pension) pensIon} pension) o

salary bonus Fass Benefits™ 2009 Pension 2009 2008 Pension 2008 a

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 g

Executive §_

Alan Aubrey 169 32 - 3 204 19 223 238 22 260 2

Alison Filelding 180 3 - 4 215 18 233 208 18 226 ~_3.|.

Magnus Goodiad 170 30 - 4 204 17 221 197 17 214 -'g"

Mike Townend 180 n - 4 215 18 233 224 20 244 ﬁ-

Non-executive

Bruce Smith - - 41 - 41 - 41 45 - 45
Graham Richards - - 32 - 32 - 32 35 - 35
Roger Brooke - - 23 - 23 - 23 25 - 25
Francis Carpenter® - - 32 - 32 - 32 26 - 26
Total 699 124 128 15 966 72 1,038 998 77 1,075

W 2008 figures are In respect of the penod from 18 April 2008 to 31 December 2008
 Benefits represent private megdical insurance and life assurance provision
“ Alison Fielding and Mike Townend were the tighest paid directars during the year ended 31 December 2009 {2008 Atan Aubrey}

“ In addition to the above during the period Alan Aubrey retained fees totalling £13 333 in respect of non executive director services provided to companies
wn which the Group s 3 shareholder
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Directors’' Remuneration Report (continued)

Directors’ long-term incentives
The following Is part of the Directors Remuneration Report and s subject to audit

a) Long Term Incentive Plan
The directors participations in the Group's LTIP are as follows

Amount

Potential Share price charged

Number HNotionally interest in at date of against protit

of shares held at shares at netional i the
1 January awarged In 31 Decamber award year Earliest
2009 the year 2009 (2] £000 vesting date

Executive Directors

Alan Aubrey 67164 - 671,641 13475 124 200510
Alison Fielding 597015 - 597,015 13475 109 200510
Magnus Goodlad 5221388 - 522,388 13475 96 200510
Mike Townend 597,015 - 597,015 13475 109 200510

Total 2,388,059 - 2,388,059 438

No notional shares vested or lapsed during the year

The fair value charge recognised in the income statement in respect of LTIP share awards granted to directors was £437.811
{2008 £43781)

The performance criteria relating to the LTIP awards are set out on page 27 and 1t 1s considered likely that the notional awards shown
above will expire without vesting 1in May 2010

Co-investment and carried interest schemes

In addition to the directors’ remuneration arrangements the Group also operates co-investment and carried interest schemes relating
to certain venture capital funds that are under its management Under the co-investment scheme, executive directors make mingrity
capital and loan commitrments to IP Venture Fund { 1IPVF") alengside the Group Executives are entitled to participate in a carned interest
scheme in respect of the partnership alongside the Group Carried mterest commonly provides a preferential refurn to participants once
the partnership has returned all funds contributed by imited partners together with a pre-agreed rate of return The carried interest
and co-investment schemes will generally contain forfelture provisions in respect of leavers over the investment period of the partnership

a) Co-investment scheme
The directors’ commitments {0 IPVF are set out below Commitmenis are made indirectly through the IP Venture Fund (FP) LP which
15 the founder partner of IPVF

Limited Total invested Invested Total invested
Total partnership te 1 January during to 31 Decombar
cammitment interest 2009 the year 2009
£000 of IPVF £000 £000 £000
Executive Directors
Alan Aubrey 51 017% 21 5 26
Alison Fielding 51 017% 21 5 26
Magnus Goodlad 51 017% 21 5 26
Mike Townend 51 C17% 21 5 26
Total 204 068% 84 20 104
b) Carried Interest scheme
The directors’ interests in carried interest schemes are set out below
Scheme Scheme Accrued valug®
interest™ Awarded Lapsed interast at of scherne interest
at 1 January dunng the during the 31 December 31 Decembar
Scheme® 2009 year year 2009 2009
Executive Directors
Alan Aubrey IPVF 167% - - 167% -
Alison Fielding IPVF 167% - - 167% -
Magnus Goodlad IPVF 167% - - 167% -
TTVIV 436% - - 4 36% -
Mike Townend IPVF 167% - - 167% -

Y Under the IPVF scherne payments to participants are made when all imited partners have been repawd thew contributions together with a hurdle rate of 8%
compound interest Under the Top Technology Ventures IV LP( TTV IV ) scheme paymenis ¢ parbioipants are made when all imited partners have been repad
their contnbutions together with a hurdle rate of 6% compound interest

“ Scheme interest represents the percentage of the relevant pool of investments in respact of which the participant 15 entitled to participate in the realised profits

' The IPVF and TTV IV schemes contain forferture provisiens over the investment pencd of the fund which may reduce the scheme interest accruing to any
participant The table reflecis the maximum scherme interest recevable should no forferiture occur

W Accrued value of scheme interests 1s calculated based upon the current value of the lirmited partnershup in excess of the capital contrnibuted together with the
hurdte rate of return
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Directors’ interests in ordinary shares (unaudited)

The directors, who held office at 31 December 2009, had the following beneficial interasts in the ordinary shares of the Company

31 Dacember 1 January

2009 2009

Humber Number

of shares of shares

Alan Aubrey 974,670 954,865
Alison Fielding 394,630 394,630
Magnus Goodlad 3,887 30000
Mike Townend 204,340 200000
Bruce Smith 216,592 2N 875
Graham Richards 9,250 9,250
Roger Brooke 269,633 263973
Francis Carpenter 109,151 -

There has been no change In the interests set out above between 31 December 2009 and ¥ March 2010

Apart from the interests dis¢losed above, none of the directors had any interest at any time during the year ended 31 December 2009
In the share capital of the Company or Its subsidiaries However, cerfain directars hold interests in the shares of spin-out companies that
the Group has an eguity interest in Detalls of these mierests are disclosed in note 24 of the financial statements

Performance graph {(unaudited)

The chart below shows the shareholder return performance for the period 15 October 2003 when the Group listed on AIM to 31 Decemnber 2009
alongside the performance of the FTSE AIM Alf Share and FTSE All Share mdices For ease of comparison, these figures have been rebased
such that the Group's share price 1s equal to the FTSE AIM All Share at 15 QOctober 2003 and FTSE All Share at 19 June 2006, the date
at which the Group joined the Official List of the UK Listing Authority The directors have selected the FTSE AIM All Share and FTSE All
Share Indices as in their opinion, these indices comprise the most relevant equity ndices of which the Company 1s a member against
which TSR of IP Group plc should be measured

290 IP Group moves to the Official List
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ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Graham Richards
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
i March 2010
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Corporate Governance

The Company 1s committed to high standards of corporate governance Carporate governance can be defined as the high level system
by which an orgarusation is directed and controlled to enable it to achweve its busmess objectives in a manner which 1s responsible and
In accordance with highest standards of integnity, transparency and accountability

This statement, together with the Directors’ Remuneration Report (set on pages 26 to 29), describes how the Company has applied
the principles of good corporate governance set out In Section 10of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance published by the
Financaial Reporting Council in June 2008 (the Code ) During ihe year ended 31 December 2009, the Group has been in comphance
with all relevant reguirements of the Code

The Board

Board composltion and responsibilities

The Board I1s responsible to shareholders for the overall management of the Group providing entrepreneurial leadership within a framework
of controls for managing nisk sething the Group's strategy, mantaining the policy and decision-making framewoark in which this strategy
i5 implemented ensuring that necessary financial and human rescurces are in place to meet strategic ams monitoring performance
agamst key financial and non-financial indicators, overseeing the system of risk management, and setting vaiues and standards
governance matters

The responsibility of the directors is collective, taking into account therr respective roles as executive directors and non-executive directors

The Board manages these matters at its reqular meetings It receives reports and presentations from each of the executive directors
responsible for the Group’s operating businesses and key central functions This ensures that all directors are aware of, and are In

a position to monitor effectively, the overall performance of the Group, its development and implermentation of strategy and its
management of risk

Board meetings and decisions

The Group's business (s managed by the Board of Directors 16 Board meetings were held during 2009 A discussion of current and
future performance and strategy 1s Included on the agenda for each meeting In addition, the Board has a schedule of matters reserved
far its decision, which includes but 1s not restricted to, the approval of intertm and annual accounts, major Investments and disposals
budgets and tong-term plans, htigation, and Board remuneration and appointments

Each Board member recewves monthly management accounts including a review and analysis of performance against budget and
other forecasts Directors are sent an agenda and a full set of Board papers for each agenda item to be discussed at the meeting
Additional information 1s provided as appropriate

Any matter requirning a decision by the Board 1s supported by a paper analysing the relevant aspects of the proposal costs, benefits,
potential risks and proposed management aciton

Directors

During 2009 the Board was made up of four exe¢utive direciors (baing the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Technology Officer,

the Director of Capital Markets and the Chief Operating Officer) the Chairman and three mdependent non-executive directors A list

of the individual directors and ther biographtes is provided on pages 20 and 23 Collectively the Board beleves it possesses all of the
necessary range of qualities skills and experience to lead the Company effectively

In accordance with the Code, the Company Is currently deemed a smaller company  since it has been below the FTSE 350 throughout
the year immediately prior to the reporting year

The Company's Articles give the directors power to appoint and replace directors All directers are required to submit themselves
for re-election by the shareholders at the Company s AGM following their first appointment and thereafter at least every three years
Notwithstanding this, no more than one third of all the directors must submit themselves for re-election each year

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer 1s clearly established set out in writing and agreed
by the Board The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and conduct of the Board and its conduct of the Groups affairs and strategy
and ensuning effechive communication with shareholders The Chairman facilitates the effective contribution of non-executive directors
The Chief Executive Officer 1s responsible for the management of the Group's operating businesses and the development of ther
strategic direction He 1s responsible for delivering the operating pians and budgets for the Group's businesses, monitoring business
performance and reporting on these to the Board

Senior Independent Director

Professor Graham Richards 1s the Senor Independent Director A key responsibility of his 1s to be available to shareholders in the event
that they may feel it inappropriate to relay views through the Chairman or Chief Executive Officer In addison the Senior Independent
Director takes the lead when the non-executive directors assess the Chairman s performance and when the appointment of a new
Chawman 1s considered




The Board {continued)

Non-executive directors

The non-executive direcfors provide a wide range of skills and experience to the Group They bring an independent judgement on 1ssues
of straieqy, performance risk and people through therr contribution at Board and committee meetings The Board considers that each
non-executive director 1s mdependent in character and judgement and that they also reet the independence criteria set out in the Code

In a imuted number of cases, directors have made de mimimis investments in spin-out companies formed under the university partnerships
Detalls of these investments are set out in note 24 to the financial statements

The non-executive directors receve a fixed fee for their services and the resmbursernent of reasonable expenses incurred in attending meetings

There 1s an agreed procedure for directors to take independent professional advice at the Company's expense Directors have direct
access to the impartial advice and services of the Company Secretary The Company Secretary 1s responsible for ensuning that Board
procedures and applicable rules and regulaticns are followed

While the Board retains overall responsibility for the Company. the day-to-day management of the business i1s conducted by the
executive directors The Beard delegates specific responsibilities to certain comrittees Each committee has its own terms of
reference set by the Board These are avallable on request from the Company Secretary

Directors’ conflicts of interest

With effect from 1 October 2008 a director has a duty under the CA 2006 to avoid a situation in which he has or can have a drrect

or indirect interest that confhicts or possibly may conflict with the interests of the company This duty is in addition to the existing duty
that a director owes to the company to disclose to the board any transaction or arrangement under consideration by the company
The CA 2006 allows drectors of public comparmes to authorise conflicts and potential conflicts where the articles of association contain
a provision to that effect Shareholders approved amendments to the Company s Articles at the AGM held on 27 April 2009 which
included provisions giving the directors authority to approve such situations and to include other provisions to allow conflicts of interest
to be dealt with in a similar way to the position that existed befere 1 October 2008 The Board has a procedure when deciding whether
to authorise a canflict or potential conflict of interest The directors are subject to an overnding obligation to act in a way they consider,
in good faith, will be most likely fo promote the Company's success [n additton, the directors are able to impose hmits or conditions
when giving authonsation if they think this is appropriate

Where potential conflicts of interest have ansen such as when a non-executive director 1s also a director of a spin-out company,
a director has a relationship with an academic institution with whom the company has a partnership agreement or there are previous
relationships between a director and the campany or predecessor compames, the director does not participate in any decisions
relating to that relationship Professor Graham Richards is a Professor of Chemistry at the University of Oxford and a director
of Inhibox Limited and Crysahin Limited

Performance evaluation

The performance of the Chairman and each director and of each committee of the Board 1s formaily evaluated on an annual basis
The Non-executives meet annually and whenever deemed necessary to appraise the Chairman s performance in the absence of
the chairman The performance of Non-executive Directors and the Chief Executive Officer ts reviewed by the Chairman and the
performance of executive directors 1s reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer in each case on an annual basis The last such review
took place in January and February 2010 In addition the performance of executive directors 1s reviewed by the Board, as deemed
necessary, In the absence of the executive director under review

Attendance
The fallowing table shows the attendance of directors at meetings of the Board, Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees
durning the year

Board Audit Remuneration Nomination

Ehgible to Ehigible to Elrgible to Ekgible ta

Attended altend Aftended atteng Attended attend Attended attena

Alan Aubrey 16 16 - - - - - -
Alison Fielding 15 16 - - - - - -
Magnus Goodlad 15 16 - - - - - -
Mike Townend 14 16 - - - - - -
Graham Richards 16 16 2 2 1 1 - -
Roger Brooke 13 16 2 2 1 1 - -
Bruce Smith 16 16 2 2 1 i - -
Francis Carpenter 15 16 2 2 - - - -
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Committees of the Board

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, which has written terms of reference, was established in October 2003 The committee comprises Roger Brooke
(Chairman), Bruce Smith, Graham Richards and Francis Carpenter The auditors, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer
and other members of management attend the meetings by invitation The Audit Cornrmittee also meets with the auditors in the absence
of executive directors and management The Audit Committee examings and reviews internal controls, together with accounting policies
and practices, the form and context of financial reports and statements and general matters raised by the auditors It reviews the intenim
financial informatron and annual accounts before they are submitted to the Board tn addition the Audit Committee makes recommendations
to the Board regarding the appointment of the external auditors reviews their independence and objectivity and monitors the scope
and results of the audit The Audit Committee 1s also responsible for agreeing the level of audit fees and monitoering the provision of
non-audit services provided Sy the Group’s auditors The Audit Committee assesses the likely impact on the auditor's independence
and otjectivity hefore awarding them any matenal contract for additional services The Board has identified Francis Carpenter as
hawving receni and relevant financial experience notwithstanding the fact that he s not a member of one of the professional accountancy
bodies Further, Roger Brooke 1s a past Charrman of the Audit Commission and the Board considers that collectively the members
have the requisite skills and atiributes to enable the committee to properly discharge its responsibilities

During the year, the Audit Committee
+ considered ihe effectiveness of the internal control environment of the Group,
+ reviewed and recormmended to the Board the approval and publication of the half-yearly and annua! financial statements of the Group,

« oversaw the Group's relations with its external auditors including reviewing and monitoring the scope and results of the audit and
half-yearly review,

assessed the independence and objectivity of BDO LLF as the Group's auditor, including consideration of the nature and size of
non-audit fees in relation to the Group audit fee In the current year, this included the approval of BDO LLP carrying out a Section 593
valuation required under CA 2006 where the Group 1ssued shares for non-cash consideration in relation to its acguisition of 19 8%
of the 1ssued share capital of Fuston IP pl¢ and in connection with specialist advice surrounding share schemes and related 1ssues
arising n portfolio companies In the case of all non-audit work carried out the committee considered BDO LLP had the requisite
skil and knowledge of the Group to carry out the work efficiently using staff unconnected with the audit team and that the fees
were commensurate with the work carned out and not considered sufficient to rmpair BDO LLP's independence,

+ recommended to the Board the re-appointment of BDO LLP as auditor and the approval of theirr remuneration for the year and
acknowledged the appointment of the Group's current lead partner who replaced the previous lead partner upon his reaching
flve years' service in early 2009,

met with the external auditors twice during the year in the absence of management to discuss any 1ssues or concerns from either
the committee or the auditors, and

* 1n accordance with the Combined Code reviewed the need to establish an internal aud:t function, but continued to believe that
in a Group of this size, where close control over operations I1s exercised by the execuiive directors, the benefiis likely to be gained
would be outweighed by the costs of establishing such a function It will continue to review the requirement for such a function
on an annual basis

The Audit Committee met twice during 2009

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commuttee was estabhshed in October 2003 and meets as and when reguired It compnses Graham Richards {Chairman),
Bruce Smith and Roger Brooke The committee s objective 1s to develop remuneration packages for executive directors that enable the
Group to attract, retain and motivate executives of the appropriate calibre without paying more than 1s necessary No director i1s involved
in deciding his or her remuneration The Board's pelicy on executive remunerahion and the details of executive directors’ indnidual
remuneration packages are fixed by the committee or the Board Full details of the directors' remuneration are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 26 to 29

The Remuneration Commitiee met once during 2009

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Commitiee was established in Gctober 2003 and meets as and when required It considers the appointment of both
executive and non-executive directors It comprises Bruce Srmith (Chairman), Graham Richards and Roger Brooke The Combined Code
stipulates that the Nominatton Committee should compnse a majority of independent non-executive directors The Normination Commuttee
did not meet during 2009 For future appointments to the Beard the Nomination Committee will consider candidates at the request
of the Board It also adwises the Board on matters generally relating to senior appointments




Internal controf

The Board fully recognises the importance of the guidance contained in Internal Control Guidance for Directors on the Combined
Code { Turnbuli ) The Groups internal controls which were Group-wide, were in place during the whole of 2009 and were reviewed
by the Board of Directors and were constdered {o be effective throughout the year ended 31 December 2009

The Board 1s responstble for establishing and momtoring internal control systems, and for reviewing the effectiveness of these
systems The Board views the eifective operation of a ngorous system of internal control as crittcal to the success of the Group,
however It recognises that such systems can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal misstatement
or loss The key elements of the Group’s internal control system, all of which have been in place during the financial year and up
to the date these financial statements were approved are as follows

Control environment and procedures
The Group has a clear organisational structure with defined responsibilities and accountabilities It adopts the highest values surrounding
quality integrity and ethics, and these values are documented and communicated clearly throughout the whole organisation

Detailed written policies and procedures have been established covering key operating and compliance risk areas These are
reviewed and updated at least annually by the Board The Board considers that the controls have been effective for the year
ended 31 December 2009

Identification and evaluation of risks

The Board actively identifies and evatuates the risks mherent in the business, and ensures that appropnate controls and procedures
are in place lo manage these nsks Specifically, all decisions relating to strategic partnerships and acquisitions entered into by the Group
are reserved for the Board's review The Board formally reviews the performance of university partnerships and equity investments on
a guarterly basis, although perfermance of specific investments may be reviewed more frequently if deemed appropriate The Board
mamniams an up to date Register of Risks setting out mitigations 1n place in each case The key risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group, as well as the relevant mitigations are set out below

Informatlon and financial reporting systems
The Board approves the annual operating budgets and each month receves details of actual performance measured against the budget

Princlpal risks and uncertainties
The Key nisks and uncertainties affecting the Group and the steps taken to manage these are as follows

Financial risks
Through its normal operations the Group I1s exposed to a number of financial risks comprising market hquidity and credit nisks

Market risk

The Group i1s exposed to market risks, principally equity securities price risk as a result of its equity investments and investments in lirmited
partnerships The Group ho'ds investments which are publicly traded on AIM and/or PLUS Markets and investments which are not traded
on an active market The valuation of quoted and unguoted investments depends on a combination of market factors including investor
sentiment avallability of hquidity and appetite for specific asset classes as well as the specific performance of gach underlying company

The Group seeks to mitigate price risk by having an established investment appraisal process and asset-specific monitoring procedures
which are subject to overall review by the Board In a number of cases these menitoring procedures ¢an include members of the Groups
executive teamn and other staff serving in an advisory capacity to portfolio companies (including secondments and non-executive directorships)
The Group has also established Capitat Markets and Communications teams dedrcated to supporting portfolo companies with fundraising
activities and investor relations

Liquichty risk
The Group is exposed to liquidity risk arising from the need to have finance availlable to make investments in portfolic companies and
to meet payments for administrative and other costs as they fall due

The Group seeks to manage :ts iquidity risk to ensure sufficient cash (s available to meet foreseeable needs and to invest cash assets
safely and profitably Accordingly the Group only places working capital on overmight deposits with clearing banks or in short-term
treasury funds managed by reputable counterparties The Group continuously monitors relling cash flow forecasts to ensure sufficient
cash I1s avallabie for anticipated cash requirements

Credit nisk

Credit risk arises from the exposure to the risk of 1oss If a counterparty fails to perform its financial obligations to the Group This could
include non-repayment of cash and cash equivalents held with finanoial institutions or defaults of individual irade or investment debtors
Reasons for counterparty defaults include general economic or sector specific downiurns, or the faillure of anindividual financial institution
or other enlity

The Group seeks to mitigate its credit nisk on cash and cash equivalents by investing in treasury funds with an "AA" credit rating or above
managed by institutions, or by making short-term depoesits with counterparties Short-term deposit counterparties are required to have
rmost recently reported tota! assets in excess of £3 tillion and, where applicable, a prime short-term credit rating at the tirne of investment
{ratings are generally determined by Moody s or Standard & Poor s) Moody's prime credit ratings of *Pi, 'P2" and P3” indicate respectively
that the rating agency considers the counterparty to have a supernor “strong” or 'acceptable” ability to repay short-term debt obligations
(generally defined as having an original matunty not exceeding 13 months)

Further details of these financial nisks, In¢cluding guantitative cansiderations of their potential iImpacts, are set out In note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements
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Corporate Governance {(continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties {continued)

Loss of key personnel from the Group

The Group's employees are highly qualified and experienced, and the area in which the Group operates 15 a speciabst area There
IS a risk that the Group s management and emgloyees wifl be targeted by competitors or technology companies The loss of key
employees of the Group may also have an adverse effect on the value of the Group

The Group mitigates this risk by performing a thorough market comparison of the rermuneration of its staff, balancing salary with longer-term
incentive plans Ali senior executives are shareholders in the business ang mernbers of the senior management and executive teams
participate in the Groups LTIP and/or equity bonus scherne, both of which are described more fully on pages 26 and 27

Group investments are generaily into companies at an early stage of development

Investments made by the Group m spin-out companies are made at an early stage and are subject to nisks associated with early stage
investments in general, including the abiity to secure second round funding, the impact of competing technolegies entering the market
and the risk that the technology will fall In some cases the ability to succeed will be dependent upon regulatory approval for certam
tnals to proceed

The Group mitigates this risk in a number of ways Executives and semor managerment collectively have many years of experience
In sourcing developing and investing in early stage technology compantes and then growing these 1o significant value creation
Thus 15 achieved through the Groups investment and business buiiding methodology The risk 1s further mitigated through low value
initial investments prior 1o seed funding which enables identification and removal of potential failures at the earliest possible stage
of the investment process

Falture of companies within the Group's portfollo

The Group has a portfolio of equity interests in portfolio companies and there 1s a high risk that certain of the Group s current and future
Investments in porticlio comparies may fail, resulting in an impairment of the Group's profitability In addition, farlure of companies within
the Group's portfolic may make it more difficult for other spin-out companies within the portfolio to rasse addiiional capital

The Group mitigates this by investing 1n a number of portfolilo compames across different sectors which reduces the potential impact
of the failure of any one individual portfolic company Further, members of the Group's management tearn and staff frequently serve
in &n advisory capacity to the Group's portfolio cormpanies (including secondments and non-executive directorships) enabling identification
and remedy of business 1ssues at an early stage

Changes in legislation and government policy

There may be unforeseen changes (in government policy or legisiation (including taxatton legislation), or ather changes in the terms
upon which public monies are made available to universities and research institutions Such changes could result in universities and
research institutions no longer being able or for it to become commercially unattractive for them, to own, exploit or proteci intellectual
property Inaddion changes in government policy or tegislation (including changes to tax legisiation, in particular in relation to the
substantial shareholder exemption) or other terms upon which university academics are incentivised, could make it commercially
unattractive for research academics to participate in the commerciahsation of the intellectua! property that they create Changes

of this nature could represent a fundamental risk to the Group's business

The Group's university partners are tncentivised to protect ther intellectual property for the Group to exploit through the structure
of the partnerstup agreements which share the returns between the universities the academic founders and the Group The Group
has further mitigated this risk by having client service team managers working locally at its partner universities to assist them with
the management of their intellectual property and with the negotiation with research contracis to ensure that their intellectual
property 15 not unduly compromised The Group's university partners also mantain close links with the government to manage their
position with respect to future legisiative changes and the Group utilises professional advisers as appropriate to support 1ts monitering
of, and response t¢ changes in tax or other teqislation

Termination of university partnerships and change of control provisions

The benefits to which the Group 15 entitled under 1ts university partnerships are dependent on the continuation of those partnerships
In a number of Instances (principaily relating to a failure on the part of the Group to meet certain contractual cbligations), the partnerships
can be terminated which could have an adverse effect on the Group's business In addihion, a number of the partnership agreements
contain change of controt clauses which may result in their renegotiation or termination

The Group manages thrs rnisk by ensuring that its university partners receive the highest level of service in hne with the Groups
contractual obligations and by continuing to generate significant value for the universities and their academic founders through
the success of spin-out companies created
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Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Recoverability of the University of Oxford Equity Rights asset

The £quity Rights asset shown in the Groups consohdated statement of financial position relates to amounts paid to the University of Oxford
to secure 50% of the university's equity In any spin-out company or of any licensing iIncome emanating from the university's chermistry
department until November 2015 The accounting treatment of the Equity Rights asset 1s described further in note 1on page 46,
howsever the assat Is not repayable in cash by the university and its value 1s therefore affected by a number of factors In the event

of evidence that the future recoverable amount of the Equity Rights asset 15 less than the value shown in the consolidated staterment

of financial position a prowision for impairment would be recogrused at that time thraugh the statement of comprehensive iIncome

The key risks that could result in an impairment of the Equity Rights include the tuming and number of successful 1P spin-out
cpportunities ansing from the university the extent to which the Group s holding 1s dituted through further financing of spin-out
companies and general market conditions which may impact the disposal values or IPQ valuations of such companies

The Group manages these risks by working closely with the university to Jjointly source and develop intellectual property spin-out
companies and then utilising the knowledge and experience of the Group's management team to create value from these companies
and generate exit routes

Relations with shareholders

The Company 15 commiited to having a dialogue with shareholders, hased on the mutual undersianding of objectives, and it 1s the
respensibility of the Board as a whole te ensure that a satisfactory dialogue does take place The Board's pnimnary shareholder contact
15 through the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director of Capiial Markets However the Senior Independent Director and other
directors as appropriate make themselves avaiiable for contact with majer shareholders in order to understand their 1ssues and concerns
Where appropnate major institutional shareholders are consulted on significant changes to the structure of the directors’ remuneration

The Company I1s committed to constructive dralogue with its shareholders The Cormpany uses the AGM as an opportunity to communicate
with its shareholders Notice of the AGM, which will be held on 27 April 2010 at IP Group plc, 24 Cornhill, London EC3V 3ND, is enclosed with
this report Inline with the Combined Code the Notice of the AGM 15 being sent to shareholders at least 20 working days before the meeting
Detarls of the resolutions and explanatory notes thereto are included with the Notice A proxy form for members of the Company unable
to attend will accompany the Notice

The Group's website www pgroupplc com 1s the pnimary source of information on the Group This includes an overview of the activities
of the Group key university partnership agreements and details of all recent Group announcements

Political expenditure

Although it is the Board's policy not to incur political expenditure or otherwise make cash contributrons to political parties, and it has no
intention of changing that palicy, CA 2006 15 very broadly drafted in this area and the Board 1s concerned that it may catch actwities
such as funding conferences or supporting certain bodies involved in policy review and law reform Accordingly, at the AGM held on
28 April 2009, the shareholders passed a resolution on a precautionary basis to autharise the Group to incur polittcal expenditure
(as defined 1n Section 365 of CA 2006} not exceeding £50,000 in total at any time from 28 Apnil 2009 up to the conclusion of the
next AGM The Beoard intends to seek renewed authority for the Group to incur political expenditure of not more than £50,000 in total
at the Company's AGM, to be held on 27 Apnil 2010, which they might otherwise he prohibited from making or incurring under the
terms of CA 2006

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which show and explain the Group's transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group, for safeguarding the assets of the Company, for taking
reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanities and for the preparation of a Directors' report
and Directors’ Remuneration Report which comply with ihe requirements of the CA 2006

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with the CA 2006

The directors are also required to prepare financial statements for the Group in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union { IFRS") and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation The directors have elected to prepare
financial statements for the Company in accordance with UX Generally Accepied Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applcable law)

sprodasfwod djddnosbd) mmm

Financral staterments are published on the Group's website In accordance with legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissermination of financial statements which may vary from legislation in cther junsdictions The maintenance and integrity of the
Group's website 1s the responsibility of the directors The direciors responsibiity also extends to the ongoing integrity of the financial
statements contained therein
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Group financial statements

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each financial year the Groups financial
posttron, financial performance and cash flows This requires the faithful representation of the effects of transactions, other events
and conditions 1n accordance with the defirtions and recognition cnitena for assets, labilities, income and expenses set out in the
International Accounting Standards Board s ‘Framework for the preparation and preseniation of financial siaterments’ In virtually
all circumstances a fair presentation will be achieved by compliance with all applicable IFRS A far presentation also requires the
directors to

+ consistently select and apply appropnate accounting policies
+ present information Including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, rehable, comparable and understandable infermation

* provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirernents in IFRS 1s insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions other events and conditions on the entity's financial positien and financia! performance, and

= prepare the accounts on a going concern basis unless, having assessed the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
management either intends to iquidate the entity or to cease trading, or has no realistic alternative but to do so

Parent company financial statements

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the profit or lass of the Campany for that pertod In preparing these financial statements, the
directors are required to

+ select suitable accouniing policies and then apply them consistenily

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate te presume that the Company will continue
In business

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and
« state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements

Golng concern
The directors confirm that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will have adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future, and accordingly they continue to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements

Responsibility staterment
The directors of IP Group plc and their functions are listed on page 20 The annual report and accounts is the responstbility of,
and has been approved by the directors

The directers confirm to the best of therr knowledge that

« the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as endorsed by the European Union and Article 4
of the I1AS regulation,

» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, labiities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole and

* the annual report and accounts includes a fair review of the developrnent and performance of the business and the position of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal nisks and
uncertainties that they {ace

ON BEHALF OF THE,BCARD

INJV oW B

Bruce Smith Ala
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
1 March 2010




Independent auditor's report 37

To the members of IP Group plc

We have audited the Group and parent company financial statements of IP Group for the year ended 31 Decernber 2009 which comprise
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income the consolidated statement of financial position, the consolidated statement of cash
flows the consclidated siaterent of changes in equity, the Company balance sheet and the related notes The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs} as adopted by the European Unon The financial reporting framework that has been applied in preparation of the parent company
financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the CA 2006 Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state {o the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no cther purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opintons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
As explained mere fully in the statement of directors responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 15 to audit the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and Internatienal Standards en Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's ( 'APB's") Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financral statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free frorn matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This Inciudes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Groups and the parent company’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors,
and the overall presentation of the financtal statements

QOpinion on financial statements
In our cpinion

¢+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group s and the parent company s affairs as at 31 December 2009
and of the Groups loss for the year then ended

* the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union

* the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and as regards
the Group financial statements, Articie 4 of the 1AS Regutation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companles Act 2006

InQur opinion

+ the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared m accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

+ the information grven in the Directors report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 15 consistent
with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report {o you If, In our opinion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our sudit have not been received
from branches not visited by us or

= the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

syiodalfwod 3jddnoibd) mmm

« ceriain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made or

« we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

= the Directors’ statement, set out on page 36 1n relation to going concern and

= the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company's compliance with the mine provisions of the June 2008
Combined Code specified for our review

Boo v

Neil Fung-On (senlor statutory auditor)

For and on behalf of BDO LLP statutory auditor

London

United Kingdom

1 March 2010

BDO LLP s a mited hability partnership reqistered in England and Wales (with reqistered number OC305127)
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Note Em £m
Portfolio return and revenue
Change in fair value of equity and debt investments 16 (1.4} (355
Less on disposal of equity Invesiments (0 8) -
Change in fair value of hmited partnership invesiments {0.1) -
QOther portfolio iIncome - 05
Revenue from services 4 1.5 19
{0.8) (331
Administrative expenses
employee bonus costs 19 (0 3) {03)]
Research and development costs (0.5) (13)
Share-hased payment charge 22 (0.6} (06)
Other administrative expenses (4.9) (796)
6.3) (96)
Operating loss 7 (7.1) (427)
Finance income - interest recevable 0.6 22
Loss before taxation (6 5) (405)
Taxation 9 04 01
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year {6.1) (40 4}
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year attributable to
Qwners of the parent 61 (40 3)
Minority interest 25 - (on
(6.1) (40 4)
Basic earnings per ordinary share (p} 10 (245) (1610)
Dilluted earnings per ordinary share (p} 10 (2 45) (1610)




Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Note Em £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangtble assets
- goodwilt n 184 184
- acquired intangible assets 12 - 01
Property, plant and equipment 13 04 05
Lquity nghts and related contract costs 15 201 202
[nvestment portfolio
- equity investments 16 99.0 965
- debt investmenis 16 23 19
Other financial asset 18 11 1
Investrent 1n hmited partnerships 23 1.5 14
Total non-current assets 142.8 1401
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 7 08 H
Deposiis 150 -
Cash and cash equivalents 131 332
Total current assets 289 344
Total assets 1717 1745
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 20 51 50
Share prermum account 993 967
Merger reserve 12.8 128
Retained earnings 538 593
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent 1710 1738
Minonity interest in equity 25 - -
Total equity 1710 1738
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 o.7 o7
Total equity and liabilities 177 1745

Registered number 4204490

The financial statements on pages 3810 63
and were signed on its behalf by

.

Bruce Smith Al v
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

re approved by the Board of Direciors and auihorised for 1ssue on 1 March 2010
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Consclidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
£m £m
Operating activities
Loss before taxation {6.5) (405)
Adjusted for:
Finance income - interest receivable (0 6) (22)
Fair value moverments in equity and debt investments 1.4 355
Fair value movements in imited partnership investments 0.1 -
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 0.1 0]
Amortisaticn of intangible non-current assets 02 0z
Loss on disposal of equity investments 0.8 -
Nen-cash employee bonus costs 03 o7
Share-based payment charge 0.6 c6
QOther portfolio income classified as investing activibies cash flows - (05
Changes in working caplital
(Increase)/decrease In trade and other receivables 0.2) 07
Decrease In trade and other payabies [{oR}} {on
Other operating cash flows
Research and development tax credits received 03 01
Interest receved 1.0 25
Net cash outflow from operating activities (2.7 (35)
Investing activities
Purchase of property plant and equipment - on
Purchase of equity and debt investments (2 8) (92}
Investment In Limited Partnershup Funds (02) {04}
Proceeds from sale of equity investments 05 -
Other portfolio inceme receved - 05
Net cash outflow from mvesting activities (2 5) 92
Financing activities
Net cash flow to deposits (15.0) -
Net cash outflow from financing activities (15.0) -
Net decrease in cash and cash eguivalents {20.2) (127)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 33.2 460
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 131 333




Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2009

Altnbutable to owners of the parent

Share
capital
£m

Share
premum®™
£m

Total
£m

At | January 2008

Loss and total comprehensive income for the year
Acquisitbion of minenty interest

Share-based payment charge

50

967

2135
(403)

o6

At 1 January 2009

Loss and total ccmprehensive iIncome for the year
Issue of equity

Share-based payment charge

50

a1

267

26

1738
(61
27
06

At 31 December 2009

51

993

17.0

© Share premium - amount subscribed for share capital in excess of norminal value net of directly attributable ssue costs
“ Merger reserve - amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value in relation to the gualifying acquistion of subsidary undertakings

1 Retained earnings - cumulative net gains and losses recogrused in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income net of associated share based

payments credits
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The annual report and accounts of IP Group plc (the ' Group™) are for the year ended 31 December 2009 The principal accounting

policies adopted in the preparation of the financial staternents are set out below The policies have been consistently apphed to all the |
years presented, unless otherwise stated These financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounhing Standards and Interpretations {collectively "IFRS"} 1ssued by the International Accounbing
Standards Board ('1ASB’) as adopted by the European Union {“adopted IFRS )

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates It also
requires Group management to exercise judgement in the most appropriate application 1n applying the Group's accounting policies
The areas where significant jJudgements and estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements and their effect are
disclosed in note 3

Changes in accounting policies

(1 New standards, Interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2009

The following new standards interpretations and amendments applied for the first time from 1 January 2009 have had an effect
on the financial statements

* Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 7) The application of this amendment has resulted in
changes to the disclosures provided in respect of financial instruments, primarily 1n note 16 to the financial statements, inctuding
an analysis of financial assets and financial labilties that are measured at fair value in the statement of financial position, Into a
three level fair value measurement hierarchy The amendment does not change the recognition or measurement of transactions
and balances in the financial statements

+ Amendments to |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements A Revised Presentation As a result of the application of this amendment
the Group has elected to present a single statement of comprehensive income, previously it presented an income statement and the
staternent of recognised income and expense n addition, a statement of changes 1n equity 1s now presented as a primary statement
where previously the information was included in a note An analysis of the tax effect of any itemns recognised in other comprehansive
Income will be included if this 1s applicable in the future The amendment does not change the recogniticn or measurement of
transactions and balances in the financial statements

* IFRS 8 Operating Segments This standard sets out requirements for the disclosure of information about an entity s operating
segments and also about the entity’s products and services, the geographical areas in which 1t operates, and its major customers
The segments are to be idenbified on the basis of internal reperts about compenents of the entity that are regularly reviewed by
the chief operation decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess its performance It replaces |AS 14
Segmental Reporting The adoption of the standard has not resulted In a change of the number and composition of the segments
reported by the Group

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments, also effective for the first time from 1 January 2009, have not had
a material effect on the financral statements

» Amendment to 1AS 23 Borrowing Costs

= Amendment to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

* Amendments to |1AS 32 and 1AS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
« Improvements to IFRS (2009)

+ IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

+ Embedded Derivatives {Amendments to IFRIC 9 and IAS 39)

(i} New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective
The following new standards interpretations and amendments which have not been applied in these financiat statements will or may
have an effect on the Greup's future financial statements

* Rewvised IFRS 3 Business Combinations (effective from periods beginning 1 July 2009) Revised IFRS 3 retains the reguirement to apply
acqusition accounting in afl cases and toidentify and recogrise intangible assets separately from goodwill However for all future
acquisitions all acquisition costs shall be written off to profit or loss instead of being included in the cost of Investment, an mtangible
asset shall be recogrised even If It cannot be reliably measured and it will be possible to gross up the balance sheet for goodwill
attributable to ‘non-controlling nterests' {previously minority interests’) The revised standard will not require the restaternent of
the Groups previous business combinations

¢ Amendments to IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective from periods beginnung 1 July 2009) This amendment
affects in parbicular the acquisition of subsidiaries achieved in stages and disposals of interests, with sigruficant differences in the
accounting depending on whether or not control 1s obtained as a result of the transaction, or where a transaction resutts only in
a change In the percentage of a controlling iterest The amendment will not require the restatement of previous transactions

+ IFRS 9 Financiat Instruments IFRS 9 will eventually replace 1AS 39 1n its entirety However, the process has been divided into three marn
components (classiftcation and measurement, impairment, and, hedge accounting} and it 1s considered unlikely that the new standard
will be endorsed untd all of these components are in their final form While the current standard s largely incormnplete s eventual adopbion
may result in changes to the classification and measurement of the Group s financial Instruments, including any iImparment thereof

None of the other new standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective 1s expected to have a material effect on the
Groups future financial statements




1 Accounting policies {(continued}

Basls of consolidation

(1) Subsidiaries

Substdiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying
a sharehotding of more than half of the voting nghts The existence and effect of potential voting nghts are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls an entity Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control 15 estabhished by the Group
until the date control ceases

The purchase method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisition of the Groups subsidiaries The cost of acquisition 1s measured
at fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued, and habilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange plus costs directly
attributable to the transaction Identifiable assets acquired and habthties and contingent habilities assumed in a business combination
are instially measured at their fair values at acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets 15 recorded as goodwill

Intercompany transactrons, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated Subsidianes
accounting policies are amended where necessary to ensure consistency with the pohcies adopted by the Group

(ily Associates
Associates are entities over which the Group has sigrificant influence, but dees not control, generally accompanied by a shareholding
of between 20% to 50% of the voting rights

Investments in asseciates are held at far value in the statement of inancial position This treatment 1s permitted by 1AS 28 Investment
In Assoctates, which reguires investments held by entities which are akin to venture capital organisations, to be excluded from its scope
where those investments are designated upon iniial recognition, as at fair value through profit or ioss and accounted for in accordance
with |1AS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement Changes in fair value of associates are recognised in profit or loss

in the penod of the change The Group has no interests in asseciates through which 1t carries on its business

{m) Lirited partnerships
Group entities act as Genera! Partner to the following hrmited partnerships

Interestin

hrited

partnership

Name %
IP Venture Fund 100
Top Technology Veniures IV LP 10

IP Venture Fund has a narrow and well-defined scope of operation and as its irmited partners are predominantly parties external to the
Group, the Group does not have access to substantially all the risks and rewards arising from its operation Having due regard for the
Group's minor interests in Top Technology Ventures IV LP, the Group does not have the power t¢ govern the operations of the lImiteg
partnerships so as to obtain benefits from their activities Accordingly, none of the imited partnerships meets the definition of a subsidiary
under |AS 27 Consoldated and Separate Financial Statements The Group does have the power to exercise significant influence over
the limited partnerships and accordingty the Group’s accounting treatment for these interests s consistent with that of assoctates as
described above, 1 e In accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement and designated as at fair value
through profit or koss on imitial recegnition

(v) Transactions with minority shareholders - ‘economic entity approach’

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group For purchases
from minority interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acqguired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary 1s deducted from equity Gamns or losses on disposals o minority interests are also recorded in equity For disposals to
mtnority interests, differences between any proceeds received and the relevant share of minority interests are also recorded 1n equity

Portfolio return and revenue

Change in fair value of equity and debt investments represents revaluation gains and losses on the Group s portfolio of investrnents
Gains on disposal of equity investments represent the difference between the far value of consideration received and the carrying
value at the start of the accounting period on the disposal of equity investments Change in fair value of limited partnership investments
represents revaluation gains and losses on the Group's Investments in imited partnership funds Dividends recevable from equity shares
are included within other portfolio ncome and recognised on the ex-dividend date or, where no ex-dividend date 1s quoted, are recognised
when the Group's nght to receive payment is established

Revenue from services All revenue from services is generated within the United Kingdom and 1s stated exclusive of value added tax
Revenue from services comprises

Advisory fees Fees earned from the provision of business support services are recognised as the related services are provided
Corporate finance adviscry fees are generally earned as a fixed percentage of total funds raised and recogrised at the tume the
related transaction is successfully concluded

Fund management services Fiduciary fund management fees are generally earned as a fixed percentage of total funds under
management and are recogrised as the related services are provided
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and eguipment s shown at cost less subsequent depreciation and impairment Cost includes expenditure that

15 attnibutable to the acquisition of the ifems Depreciation on assets 1s calculated using the straight-ine method to allocate the cost
of each asset to its residual value over Its estimated useful life, as follows

Fixtures and fittings Over 3 to 5 years
Computer equipment Over 3 {0 5 years
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate at each reporting date

Intangible assets

(1) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsichary
at the date of acguisition Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidianes 1s included in infangible assets and allocated from the acquisition date
to each of the Group's cash generating urits (“*CGU") that are expected to benefit from the business combination Goodwill may be
allocated to CGUs in both the acquired business and in the existing business Goodwilt 1s tested annually for impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impawment losses

(1)} Acguired intangible assets - business comhinations

Intangible assets that are acquired as a result of a business combination and that can be separately measured at fair value on a reliable
basis are separately recognised on acquisition at their fair value Amorfisation is charged on a straight-ine basis to the statement of
comprehensive income over their expected useful economic lives and 1s included within “Other adrministrative expenses”

Impairment of intangible assets (Including goodwill)

Goodwill 1s not subject to amortisation but 1s tested for impairment annually and whenever events or circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable Assets that are subject to amortisation are tested for iImpairment when events or a change
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable Animpatrment loss s recognised for the amount by which
the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of the asset s fair value less costs to sell
and the value In use For the purposes of assessing Impairments, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are identifiable
cash flows {ie CGUs)

Financial assets
In respect of reqular way purchases or sales, the Group uses trade date accounting to recognmise or derecognise financial assets

Financial assets are derecogrnised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership

The Group classifies its frnancial assets into one of the categories ksted below, depending on the purpose for which the asset was
acguired None of the Group's financial assets are categorised as held to maturity or available for sale

(1) At fair value through profit or loss
Fianoial assets at fair value through profit or loss are elther finanoial assets held for trading or financia! assets which are designated
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recegmition

Thts category includes eqguity investments, deb{ investmenis, equity nghts and investments i imited partnerships Investments in associated
undertakings which are held by the Group with a view to the ultimate realisation of capital gains are alsc categorised as at fair value
through profit or loss This measurement basis 1s consistent with the fact that the Groups performance in respect of investments in
equity investmenis hmited partnerships and associated undertakings s evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with an established
Investment strategy

Financial assets at fawr value through profit or loss are rutially recogrised at fair value and any gains or losses arising from subsequent
changes in fair value are presented in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive iIncome in the period which they anse

The fair values of quoted investments are based on bid prices in an active market at the reporting date

The {air value of unlisted securities 1s established using valuation technigues These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions
discounted cash flow anatysis and earnings multiples Wherever possible the Group uses valuation techniques which make maximum
use of market-based inputs Accordingly, the valuation methodology used most commonly by the Group 1s the ‘price of recent investment’
contamned in the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines (the IPEVCY Guidehnes ') endorsed by the 8ritish &
European Venture Capital Associations The following considerations are used when calculating the fair value of unlisted securities

Cost

Where the investment being valued was itself made recently, its cost will generally provide a good indication of far value unless there
i obyjective evidence that the investment has since been impaired such as observable data suggesting a deterioration of the financial,
technical, or commercial performance of the underlying business




1 Accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(1) At fair value through profit or loss {continued)

Price of recent investment

The Group considers that fair value estimates that are based eniirety on observable market data will be of greater reliability than those
based on assumptions and accordingly where there has been any recent investment by third parties, the price of that investment will
generally provide a basis of the valuation The length of period for which It remains appropnate to use the price of recent Investment
depends on the specific carcumstances of the investment and the stability of the external envtronment During this period the Group
considers whether any changes or events subsequent to the transaction would imply a change in the fair value of the investment may
he required

Given the nature of the Group's investments in seed start-up and early stage companies where there are often no current and no
short-term future earnings or positive cash flows 1t can be difficult to gauge the probability and financial impact of the success or
fallure of development or research activities and to make reliable cash flow forecasts Consequently, the most appropriate approach
to determine farr value i1s a methodology that 1s based on market data, that being the price of a recent nvestment Where the Group
considers that the price of recent investment, unadjusted, 1s no longer relevant and there are imited or ng comparahle companies
or fransactions from which {o infer value, the Group carries out an enhanced assessment based on milestone analysis and/or industry
and sector analysis In applying the milestane analysis approach to investments in companias in early ¢r development stages the
Group seeks to determine whether there 1s an indicabion of change in fair value based on a consideration of performance against
any milestones that were set at the time of the orniginal investment decision, as well as taking into consideration the key market
drivers of the investee company and the overall econcmic envirgnment

Where the Group considers that there 1s an indication that the fair value has changed, an estimation 1s made of the required amount
of any adjustment from the last price of recent investrment Wherever possible, ths adjustment 1s based on objective data from the investee
company and the experience and judgement of the Group however any adjustment 1s, by 1ts very nature, subjective Where a deterioration
in value has occurred, the Group reduces the carrying value of the investment to reflect the estimated decrease If there 1s evidence
of value creation the Group may consider increasing the carrying value of the tnvestment However in the absence of additional financing
rounds or profit generation it can be difficult to determine the value that & purchaser may place on positive developments given

the potent:al cutcome and the costs and risks to achieving that outcome and accordingly caution 1s applied

Factors which the Group considers include inter aha technical measures such as product development phases and patent approvals,
financial measures such as cash burn rate and profitability expectations, and market and sales measures such as testing phases,
product launches and market introduction

Other valuation techniques

if there s no readily ascertainable value from following the ‘price of recent investment’” methodology, or there Is objective evidence
that a deterioration in fair value has occurred since a relevant transacticn the Group considers alternative methodologies in the
IPEVCV Guidelines, such as Discounted Cash Flows ( 'DCF") or price-earnings multiples DCF involves estimating the fair value of

a business by calculating the present value of expected future cash flows, based on the most recent forecasts in respect of the
underlying business Given the difficulty of preducing rehable cash flow forecasts for seed, start-up and early stage companies

as described above, thrs methodology 1s generally used as a confirmatory indicator of the level of any adjustment thai may need

to be made to the last price of recent investment

When using the earnings multiple methodology earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT 'y are generally used adjusted to a maintamable
level A suitable earnings multiple 1s derived from an equivalent business or group of businesses, for which the average price-earnings
multiple for the relevant sector index can generally be considered a suitable proxy This multiple 1s applied to earrings to derive an
Enterprise Value which s then discounted by up to 60% for non-marketability and other risks inherent to businesses in early stages
of operation

No reliable estimate
Where a fair value cannot be estimated reliably the investment is reported at the carrying value at the previous reporting date unless
there 1s objective evidence that the investment has since been impaired

(n) Loans and receivables
These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed and determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market They arise
principally through the prowision of services to customers (trade receivables) and are carried at cost less provision for imparrment

Fair value hierarchy

The Group classifies financial asseis using a farr value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the related
fawr value measurements The level in the fair value huerarchy within which a financial asset 1s classified 1s determined on the basis

of the lowest level input that 1s significant to that asset s fair value measurement The fair value hierarchy has the following levels

Level1 - Quoted prices in active markets
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, such as prices from market transactions
Level 3 - One or more inputs that are not based on observable market data
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1 Accounting pollcies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(1) Loans and receivables {(continued)

Equity nights

Equity rights represent consideration paid to the University of Oxford hetween December 2000 and June 2001

The payment gives the Group the right to recerve 50% of the University s equity in any spin-out company or of any licensing income
emanating from the University s Chemistry Department The contract expires on 23 Novemnber 2015

The equity nights agreement 1s considered to be a denvalive contract and 1s classified as a held {for trading financial instrument with
changes w far value recognised within profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income

As described in note 15, the directors have not been able to determine a reliable fawr value for this financial instrument Untif such
time as the directors are able to compute a rehable fair value, the equity nghts are carned at cost less provision for impairment
The directors review equity rights for impairment annually and if there 1s objective evidence of an impairment, then a provision
would be charged to profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive Income

Debt investments

Debt iInvestments are generally unguoted debt instruments whuch are convertible to equity at a future pont In time Such instruments
are considered to be hybrid instruments eontaining a fixed rate debl host contract with an embedded equity derivative The Group
designates the entire hybrid contract at fair value through profit or loss oninitial recognition and accordingly, the embedded derivative
15 noi separated from the host contract and accounted for separately The fair value of debt investments i1s established by calculating
the present value of expected future cash flows associated with the instrument

Deposits
Deposits comprise longer-term deposits held with financial institutions with an oniginal maturity of greater than three months

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents inciude cash in hand and short-term deposits held with financial institutions with an onginal maturity
of three meonths or less

Financial liabllities
Financial habifities are comprised of trade payables and other short-term monetary hiabilities, which are recogrised at amortised cost

Unless atherwise indicated, the carrying amounts of the Group's financial habiities are a reasonable approximation to their fair value

Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the Group are treated as equity If the holders have only a residual interest in the Group's assets after
deducting all habiiities The objective of the Group 1s to manage capital 5o as to provide shareholders with above average returns through
capital growth over the meditm to long term The Group considers its capital to comprise its share captal share premum, merger
reserve and retained earnings

Top Technalogy Ventures Limited a Group subsidiary 15 subject to external capital requrements imposed by the Financial Services
Authority ( FSA") and as such must ensure that it has sufficrent capital to satisfy these requirements The Group ensures tt remains
comphant with these requirements as described in the financial statements of Top Technology Ventures Limited

Contract costs
Contract costs comprise related costs to secure university partnership arrangements and these costs are amortised over the life
of the respective partnership

Operating segments
An operating segment 1s a group of assets and operations which are identified on the basis of internal reports that are regularly reviewed
by the Board, which analyse components of the Group in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its performance

Employee benefits

(1) Pension obligations

The Group operates a stakeholder pension scheme far which all employees are eligible The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently admtnistered fund At present the Group does not make contributions to this scheme, but
does make contributions to employee personal pension schemes on anindividual basis The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been patd The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are due
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of LTIP awards are estimated at the date of award using a Monte Carlo simulation technigue, taking into account
the terms and canditions of the award, including market-based performance conditions

No expense 15 recogrised for grants that do not vest and charges previously made are reversed except where vesting 1s conditional
upon a market condition which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market conditien is satisfied, provided all
other performance conditions are satisfied

At each reporting date before vesting the cumulative expense 1s calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting pericd
has expired and management’s best estimate of the achievement or otherwise of nan-market conditions, the number of equity
instrumenis that will ultimately vest or in the case of an (nstrument subject to a market condition, be treated as vesting as described
above The movement in cumulative expense since the previous balance sheet date 1s recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income, with a corresponding entry in equity

Where the terms for an equity-settled award are modified and the modification increases the total far value of the share-based
payment, or Is otherwise beneficial to the employee at the date of modification, the incremental fair value 1s amortised over the
vesting period

(1) Bonus plan

The Group operates a bonus incentive scheme linked te the equity receved in spin-out companies as a result of investments made by
the Group (the “equity bonus scheme') The Group accrues for employee bonuses when it becomes likely that an award or awards will
be made under the scheme at a cost to the Group of up to 175% of the fair vatue of investments made by the Group Bonus awards due
under the scheme are settied using shares held in companies in the Group's equity portfolio Some of these shares have been subscribed
for 1n cash by the Group and others have been recewved for no cash consideration by wirtue of the Groups uruversity partnerships

Deferred tax

Full provision 1s made for deferred tax on all temporary differences resutting from the carrying vatue of an asset of habihty and its tax
base Deferred tax i1s determined using tax rates {and iaws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or deferred tax liability settled Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it 1s probable that the deferred tax asset wilt be recovered in the future

Leases
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases Payments

made under operating leases are charged to administrative expenses In the staterment of comprehensive Income on a straight-ine
basts over the term of the lease

2. Financial risk management

As set out in the Prin¢ipal risks and uncertamties section of the Corporate Governance statement on pages 33 to 35, the Group
is exposed through its normal operations, to a number of financial risks, the most sigruficant of which are market, hquichty and
credit risks

In general nsk management 15 carried out throughout the Group under policies approved by the Board of Directors The following
further describes the Group's cbjectives policies and processes for managing those risks and the methods used to measure them
Further guantitative information in respect of these risks 15 presented throughout these financial statements

(a) Market risk
(1) Price risk

The Group s exposed {o eguity secunties price nisk as a result of the equity investrments and investments in hrmited partnerships held
by the Group and categorised as at fair value through profit and loss

The Group mitigates this nisk by having established investment appraisal processes and asset monitoring procedures which are subject
to overall review by the Board The Group has also established Caprtal Markets and Commurucations teams dedicated to supporting
portfolic comparies with fundraising activitres and investor relations

The Group halds invesiments which are publicly traded on the AiM and/or PLUS Markets and invesiments which are not traded on an
active market

syiodalfwod jddnosbd) mmm

The net reductron in fair value of the Group s equty investments during 2009 of £14m represents a 1% change against the opening
balance (2008 net decrease of £354m, 28%) and a simifar Increase or decrease In the prices of guoted and unquoted investments

15 considered to be reasonably possible The table below summarises the iImpact of a 1% increase/decrease in the price of both gquoted
and unguoted investments on the Group's post-tax profit for the year and on equity

2009 2008
Quoted Unqguoted Total Cuoted Unquoted Tota

Em £m £m £€m £m £m

Equity iInvestments and investments in hmited partnerships 04 06 10 04 06 10
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2 Financial risk management (continued)

{8} Market risk {continued)

(n) Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant borrowings it has only a iimited interest rate risk The primary impact to the Group is the impact
on income and operating cash flow as a result of the interest-bearing deposits and cash and cash eguivalents held by the Group

The Group mitigates this risk, in co-ordination with hiquidity risk, by managing its proportion of fixed to floating rate financial assets
The table below summanises the interest rate profile of the Group

2009 2008
Flixed Flcating Interest Fixed Floating Interest
rate rats frae Total rate rate free Total
Em Em Em £m £m £m £m £Em
Financial assets
Equity rights - - 199 199 - - 199 199
Eguity investments - - 990 990 - - 965 965
Debt investments 15 - 08 2.3 10 - 09 19
Deposits 150 - - 15.0 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - 131 - 131 150 183 - 333
Other financial asset - - 11 1 - - 11 1
Trade recevables - - 0.2 0.2 - - 02 02
Other recewvables - - 0.6 06 - - a8 08
165 131 1216 1512 160 83 no4 1537
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - - 0.2 0.2 - - 01 01
Accrued staff bonus - - 01 01 - - - -
Other accruals and deferred income - - o4 o4 - - 04 04
- - o7 o7 - - 05 05

At 31 December 2009 If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower, post-tax profit for the year and other components of equity would
have been £02m (2008 £0 2m) tugher/lower as a result of higher interest received on floating rate cash deposits

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group seeks to manage liquidity risk, to ensure sufficient hquidity 1s avallable to meet foreseeable needs and to invest cash assets
safely and profitably Accerdingly the Group enly invests warking capital in short-term instruments issued by reputable counterparties
The Group continuously monitors rolling cash flow forecasts to ensure sufficient cash 1s avalable for anticipated cash requirements

{c) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk 1s primanily atinbutable to its deposits, cash and cash equivalents debt investments and trade receivables

The Group seeks to mitigate its credit risk on cash and cash equivalents by investing in treasury funds with an AA c¢redit rating or
above managed by institutions or by making short-term deposits with counterparties Shert-term deposit counterparties are required
{0 have most recently reported total assets in excess of £3 bilhien and, where applicable a prime short term credit rating at the time
of investment (ratings are generally determined by Moody s or Standard & Poor s) Moody s prime credit ratings of "P1°, 'P2” and "P3"
Indicate respectively that the rating agency considers the counterparty to have a "superior  strong or "acceptable” ability to repay
short term debt obligations (generally defined as having an oniginal maturity not exceeding i3 months) An analysis of the Group s deposits
and cash and cash eguivalents balance analysed by credit rating as at the repcrting date s shown in the table below All other financial
assets are unrated

2009 2008
Credit rating £€m £m
P1 16.1 00
P2 2.5 -
AA 95 14 4
Unrated* - 89
Total deposits & cash and cash equivalents 281 333

* Unrated deposits & cash and cash eguivalents includes £Mi) (2008 £50m) of short term instruments where the counterparty has not been rated by Mocdy s
or Standard & Peor s In 2008 these counterparties were buldding soieties who in accordance with the Groups treasury policy have mest recently reported
total assets in excess of £3 billon at the time of investment

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk. with exposure spread over a large number of counterpariies and customers
The Group has detailed policies and strategies which seek to minuimise these associated nsks

The Groups exposure to credit risk on debt investments 1s managed in a similar way to equity price risk, as described above through
the Groups investment appraisal processes and asset monitoring procedures which are subject to overall review by the Board

The maximum exposure to credit nisk for debt investments, receivables and other financial assets 1s represented by their
carrywng amount
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3 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The directors make judgements and estimates concerning the future Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on hustonical experience and other factors, such as expectations of future events, and are believed to be reasonable under the
arcumstances Actual results may differ from these estimates The esbimates and assumptions that have the most significant effects
on the carrying amounts of the assets and liabiiities in the financial statements are discussed below

{1} impairment of goodwill - the Group I1s required to test, at least annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment
The recoverable amount 1s determined using vatue In use calculations The use of this method requires the estimation of
future cash flows and the setection of a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of these cash flows

{m eauity nghts - the equiiy rights agreement 1s cansidered o be a derivative contract and 1s classified as a held for trading financial
instrument with changes in fair valug recognised in the statement of comprehensive income The directors consider that for each
of the key vanables which would be relevant in determining a fair vatue for this financial instrument there is a range of reasonably
paossible alfernative vaiues which result in a wide range of far value estimates None of these estimates 1s considered more
appropriate or relevant than any other and accordingly the directors have not been able to determine a reliable far value
for thrs financial instrument and

() valuaton of unquoted equity investments - the judgements required tn order to determine the appropnate valuation methodology
of unguoted equity investments have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
labshities These judgements include making assessments of the future earnings potential of peortfolic companies, assessing which
appropriate earnings multiples to apply, and marketabiity and other risk discounts

Discussion of sensitivity anatyses is included m the relevant note for each of the above estimates and judgements

4, Revenue from services
All revenue from services 1s dertved from the proviston of advisory and venture capital fund management services

5. Operating segments

For both the year ended 3i December 2009 and the year ended 31 December 2008 the Groups revenue and profit before taxation was
derived entirely from its principal achivity within the UK and accordingly no additional gecgraphical disclosures are given For management
reporting purposes, the Group is currently organised into three operating segments (1) the commercialisation of intellectual property
via the formation of long-term partnerships with universities, (1) management of venture funds focusing on early-stage UK technology
companies and (i) the in-icensing of drugable intellectual property from research intensive nstitutions These activities are described
in further detail in the Chief Executive Cfficer s statement on pages 6 t0 19

University Venture
partnership capltal fund  In-licensing
business management activity Consolldated

Yaar ended 37 December 2009 Em £m Em £m
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Portfolio return and revenue
Change in fair value of equity and debt investments (1.4} - - (1.4)
Loss on disposal of equity investments (0 8) - - (0 8B) F
Change in fair value of imited partnership investments (0.1} - - (o1 £
Revenue from adwvisory services 0.4 01 - 0.5 3'
Revenue from fund management services - 1.0 - 10 g
Administrative expenses {4.9) 0.7 on (6.3) %
Operating {loss)/profit (6.8) 04 on (70 §
Finance income - interest receivable 0.6 - - 0.6 "3-
(Loss)/profit before taxation (6.2} 04 o7 {6 5) §_
Taxation - - 0.4 04 w
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive income for the year (6.2} 04 {0.3) (61) g
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION g
Assets 166.7 48 02 177 3
Liabilitles (0.5) (0.1) (0.1} (07) ;
Net assets 166.2 47 0. 171.0 3

[=1)
Other segment items D
Capital expenditure - - - - 3
Depreciation 0.1 - - 01 o
Amortisation of ntangible assets - oz - 0.2 a

&

[=]

[

=2

o

o

o

O
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5. Operating segments (continued)

University Venture
partnership  capstal fund In icensing
business  management actmty Consokdated
Year ended 31 Decernber 2008 £m £m £m Em
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Pertfolio return and revenue
Change n fair value of equity and debt investments (355) - - (355)
Other portfoho income 05 - - 0S
Revenue from advisory services 0% Q3 - o8
Revenue from fund management services - 1 - I
Admunistrative expenses (54) (12) (30) (96)
Operating (loss)/profit (399) 02 (30) (427}
Finance income - inierest receivable 20 01 o]} 22
(Loss)/profit before taxation (379 03 (29) (405)
Taxation - - o1 01
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive tncorme for the year (379} 03 28) (40 4)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Assets 1707 32 06 1745
Liabllities (05} (0N (0N 07}
Net assets 1702 3i 05 1738
Other segment items
Capital expenditure 01 - - a1
Depreciation 01 - - 01
Amortisation of intangible assets - 02 - 02
6. Auditor's remuneration
Details of the auditor s remuneration are set cut below
2009 2008
£000 £000
Audit services
- fees payatile to Company auditor for the audit of parent and consclidated accounts 60 57
Non-audit services
Fees payable to Coempany auditor and its associates for other services
- auditing of accounts of subsidiaries pursuant to leqislation 39 27
- other services supplied under legislation 13 13
- other taxation services
- corporation tax compliance 36 43
- corporation tax acdvisory 4 22
- other tax advisory 49 69
- recruiiment and remuneration services - -
- all other services 1 4
212 235
7. Loss from operations
Loss from operations has been arrrved at after charging
2009 2008
£€m Em
Amortisation of iIntangible asseis 02 02
Bepreciabion of tangible assets 0.1 01
Employee costs (see note 8) 3.9 55
Operating leases - property 04 05
Loss on disposal of equity investments o8 -




8 Employee costs
Employee costs (including directors) comprise

2009 2008

£m Em

Salaries 2.6 42
Defined contribution pension cost 0.1 ]
Share-based payment charge (see note 22) 0.6 06
Equity bonuses accrued i the year o3 o1
Socral security 0.3 05
39 55

The average manthly number of persons (including executive directors) employad by the Group during the year was 35, all of

whom were involved In management and administration activities (2008 54) The Company had no employees in the year ended
3i December 2009 (2008 Nily Detatls of directors remuneration and gains on the exercise of share options can be found in the

Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 26 to 29

9 Taxation
2009 2008
£m fm
Current tax (04 [{e])}
Deferred tax - _
The credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss per the statement of comprehensive incorne as follows
2009 2008
£m £m
Loss before tax {6.5) (405)
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 28% (2008 28%) (1.8) M3
Non-taxable income 0.5 {e])!
Non-deductible net fair valie 1055es 0.4 99
Schedule 23 deduction - -
Research and developrment tax credits (0.4) (on
Tax lesses arnsing not recognised 08 09
Other adjustments 041 06
Tax credii (04) (an

At 31 December 2009, deducttble temporary differences and unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised

totalled £19 4m (2008 £167m) An analysis 1s shown below

2009 2008
Ameount Defarred tax Amount  Deferred tax

Em £m £m £m

Share-based payment costs - - - -
Unused tax losses 19.4 5.4 167 a7
194 54 167 47

This asset has not been recogrused in the financial statements due to current uncertainties surrounding the reversal of the underlying
temporary differences This deferred tax asset would be recovered «f there were {uture taxable profits from which the reversal of the

underlying temporary difference could be deducted

The directors believe that the Group gualifies for Substantial Shareholder Exemption and therefore no deferred tax 1s provided for

Inrespect of the net uplift in valuation of the Group’s equity investments
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10. Earnings per share

2009 2008
Earnings Em £m
Earnings for the purposes of basic and dilutive earnings per share ((-R)) (403)

2009 2008
Number of shares No of shares No of snaras.
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 250,711,712 250,291,965
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
- share options - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ior the purposes of diluted earnings per share 250,711,712 250291965

The Group has only one class of potentially dilutive ordinary shares These are contingently 1ssuable shares arising under the Group LTIP
Based upon information available at the end of the reporiing period, none of the performance cnieria for vesting of awards under the
LTIP has been satisfied Consequently, there are no potentially dilutive shares outstanding at the period end and therefore the diluted
earnings per share s egual to the basic earnings per share

11 Goodwill

£m
At 1 January 2008 187
Acquisition of mmority interests® o
Disposed with subsidiary® (04
At 1.January 2009 184
At 31 December 2009 18 4
At 31 December 2008 184

¥ Goodwill ansing on the Group increasing its stake in Modern Waste Limited in 2008 Modern Waste Limited was then subsequently disposec of on 17 December 2008

The recoverable amount of the above goodwill has been determined from value in use calculations on cash flow projections from formafly
approved budgets in respect cf the relevant CGU, covering the remaining life of the related funds under managerment or university parinerships

The goodwill allocated to each CGU 1s summarised in the following table

2009 2008
Em f£m
University partnership CGU 16.3 163
Fund management CGU 21 21
184 184
Impairment review of venture capital fund management CGU
The following key assurnptions have been used io determine value In use
2009 2008
Discount rate 9% 9%
Number of funds under management 3 3
Management fee 2-3.5% 2%
Cost inflation 4% 4%

The assumptions above refiect past expenence All reasonably possible changes to key assumptions do not result in the recoverable
amount being less than the carrying value of goodwill
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11. Goodwiil (continued)

Impairment review of the unlversity partnership CGU

The directors consider that for each of the key variables which would be retevant in determining a value mnuse for the university
partnership CGU there 1s a range of reasonably possible alternative values The key vanable ranges are set out below

2009 2008
The number of spin-out companies per year 2-10 2-8
Initial equity stake acquired by the Group under the university partnership 12-30% 20%
Proportion of spin-out companies faihing 20-40% 20-30%
Dilution rates prior to exit as a result of financing for spin-out companies 35-60% 35-50%
Proportion of IPQ exits 30-50% 30-50%
IPO ext valuations £20m-£40m £30m-£50m
Proportion of disposal exits 30-50% 30-50%
Disposal valuations £10m-£30m £15m-£35m
Discount rate 8-12% 8-10%

These key variable ranges result in a wide range of value :n use estimates for the university partnerstip CGU None of these estimates
of value In use Is considered more appropriate or relevant than any other, however none indicate that an imparrment of the goodwill
allocated to the CGU 1s required

12. Acquired intangible assets

£m
At 1January 2008 03
Armortisatien charge during the year ended 31 Decernber 2008 (G2)
At 1 January 2009 o
Amortisation charge during the year ended 31 December 2009 {0])]
At 31 December 2009 -
At 31 December 2008 o1

On 30 June 2004 the Group acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of Top Technology Ventures Limited At this time, Top Technology
Ventures bumited was party to two contracts to supply fund management services The directors calculated the fair value of this asset
on a discounted cash flow basis and concluded that the fair value of this asset at 30 June 2004 was £0 8m The assel has been amortised
on a straight-hne basis over its useful ife which was determined by reference to the residual Iife of the two contracts to be 5. years
from the date of acquisition At 31 December 2009 the asset had been fully amortised

13. Property, plant and equipment

Total
£m §
Cost £
At 1 January 2009 08 g
Additions - f:;
At 31 December 2009 0.8 7
Accumulated depreciation g
At 1 January 2009 03 By
Charge for the year Ol §
At 31 December 2009 0.4 v
Net book value
At 31 December 2009 04
A{ 31 December 2008 05
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13. Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Tatal
£m
Cost
At 1 January 2008 o7
Additions 01
At 31 December 2008 08
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2008 02
Charge for the year 01
At 31 December 2008 03
Net book value
At 31 December 2008 g5
At 31 December 2007 0s
14. Categorisation of financial instruments
Al fair valug through
profit or joss
Designated
Held for upon ntial Loans and
trading recagtion recenatles Total
Financial assets £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2009
Equity rights 196 - - 199
Equity investments - 990 - 990
Debt investments - 23 - 23
Other financial asset 11 - - Nl
Investment in limited partnerships - 15 - 15
Trade and other receivables - - 08 08
Deposits - - 150 150
Cash and cash equivalents - - 131 131
Total 21.0 102.8 289 1527
At 31 December 2008
Equity rights 199 - - 199
Equity iInvestments - 965 - 965
Debt investments - 19 - 19
Other financial asset 1 - - 11
Investment in limited partnerships - 14 - 14
Trade and other recetvables - - 1i [l
Cash and cash equivalents - - 333 333
Total 210 998 344 1552

All financial labilities are categonsed as other financial liabilities and recognised at amortised cost
The Group does not consider that any change in fair value of Hinancial assets in the year s aitnbutable to credit risk (2008 ENil}

All net fair value gains in the year are attributabte to financial assets designated at fair value through profif or loss on initial recognition
in 2008, all net farr value gains were attributable to financial assets designated at faw value through profit or loss on inikigl recognition
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15. Equity rights and related contract costs

Equity Contract
rights costs Tatal
£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2009 and 31 December 2009 199 05 204
Aggregate amortisation of contract costs
At 1 January 2009 - 02 ©02)
Charge for the year - (an (on
At 31 December 2009 - 03 {03)
Net book value
At 31 December 2009 199 0.2 201
At 31 December 2008 199 03 202

Equity Contract

rights costs Total

£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2008 and 31 December 2008 199 05 204
Aggregate amortisation of contract costs
At 1 January 2008 - 02} (02}
Charge for the year - - -
At 31 December 2008 - 02 (02)
Net book value
At 31 December 2008 199 03 202
At 31 December 2007 199 03 202

Carrying amount of equity rights

Equity nghts represent consideration paid to the University of Oxford between December 2000 and June 2001 The payment gives
the Group the right to recewve 50% of the university’s equity in any spin-out company or of any licensing incorme emanating from

the University's Chemistry Department The contract expires on 23 November 2015

The directors consider that for each of the key variables which would be relevant in determining a fair value for this financial instrument

there 1s a range of reasonably possible alternative values The key vanable ranges are set out below

2009 2008 £
The number of spin-out companies per year from the University of Oxford Chemusiry Department 1-3 -3 ;
Imnitial equity stake acquired by the Group under the equity rights contract 20% 20% 3‘
Proportion of spin-out companies failhing 20-20% 20-30% E
Dilution rates prior to exit as a resudt of financing for spin-out companies 35-60% 35-50% 2
Proportion of IPO exits 30-40% 30-50% 8
IPO exit valuations E30m-E£50m £30mM-£50m "?r
Proportion of disposal exits 30-50% 30-50% §
Disposal valuations £15m-£35m £15m-£35m a
Discount rate 8-10% 8-10%

These key vanable ranges result :n a wide range of fair value estimates for the eguity rights agreement None of these esbimates of
fair value 1s considered more appropriate or relevant than any cther and accordingly the directors have not been able to determine a
rehable fair value for thus financial instrument at either 1 January 2004 or any subsequent reporting date The directors consider a far
value for thus instrument could be reliably estimated when the remaining duration of the contract reaches a stage at which the above

variable ranges produce a range of fair values which are sufficiently close

Until such time as the directors are able to compute a reliable fair value, the equity nghts are carnied at cost less prowvision for impawrment
The directors review equity rights for rmpairment annually and if there 1s objective evidence of an impairment, such as a continued
dechine in either the number of new spin-out companies from the University of Oxford Chemustry Department or the valuations achieved
at IPO or disposal then a provision would be charged to the statement of comprehensive income None of the above reasonably possible

estimates of fair value indicates that an impairment of carrying value of the equity rights agreement 1s required
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16. Investment portfolio

Level] Level 2 Level 3
Equity Equity Unquoted Equity
investments investrnents debt investments
n Guoted munquoted investments nunquoted
Spn-out Spin out W spen out Spar-out
companes compantes Companies £OoMpanies Total
Group fm £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 200G 382 461 19 122 984
Investrments during the year 32 14 10 a1 57
Reclassifications during the year 02 (0] on 02) -
Transfers between hierarchy levels during the year - (208} - 208 -
Disposals (09) (01 - (02) (12)
Change In farr value In the year - 35 (C5) (4 4) (14)
Equity allocated to staif - (02} - - 02}
At 31 December 2009 40,7 30.0 23 28 3 1013

Fair values of unquoted spin-out companies classified as Level 3 1n the fair value hierarchy have been determuned in part or in full by
vakuation technigues that are not supported by observable market prices or rates Investments in 27 companies have been classified
as Level 3 and the indmidual valuations for each of these have been arrived at using a vanety of valuation techniques and assumptions
Howevey, If the assumptions used in the valuation technigues for the Group's holding in each company are varied by using a range
of possible alternatives, there s no material difference te the carrying value of the respective spin-out company

The net reduction in fair value for the year of £14m (2008 £35 5m) includes a net reduction of £4 4m (2008 £3 6m) that has been
estimated using a valuation technique Further details are contained within the accounting policy for equity investments

Change in fair value in the year

2009 2008

Em £m

Fair value gains 15.3 122
Fair value losses {16 7) (477)
(1.4) (355)

The Company s interests in subsidiary undertakings are listed 1n note 2 of the Company s financial statements on page 66

17. Trade and other receivables

2009 2008
Em Em

Trade debtors o2 02
Prepayments 02 01
Other recevables 04 08
0.8 11

The directors consider the carrying amount of trade and other receivahles to approximate their fair value All receivables are interest
free, repayable on demand and unsecured

18 Other financial asset

Other financial asset comprises of a zero cost forward contract giving the Group the right to receive sale proceeds when the University
of Leeds sells down iis stake 1n specified spin-out companies subject to a maximum recevable of £12m (2008 £12m) The asset has
no set date of repayment or other nghts of recourse This asset 15 classified as a financial asset held for trading mnibially measured at
fair value with subsequent changes recognised in the statement of comprehensive income Fair value 1s determined by discounting
expected cash flows at prevalling market rates of interest and accordingly the Group considers this asset to be Level 3 in the fair
value hierarchy throughout the current and previous financial years
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19. Trade and other payables

2009 2008
Em Em

Trade payables 02 01
Social secunity expenses 0. 02
Accrued staff bonuses 01 -
Other accruals and deferred iIncome 03 04
07 o7

Accrued staff bonuses

During the year ended 31 December 2009, bonus enhitlernents were settled by the allocation of equity from investments made
by the Group

The birming of the actual allocations of equity to employees is subject to a number of factors, including the performance of the
business as a whole

Current

banus

accrual

Group £m
At 1 January 2009 -
Charged in the statement of comprehensive income (03
Settled duning the year 02
At 31 December 2009 01N
Current

bonus

accrual

Group £m
At i January 2008 07
Charged in the statement of comprehensive iIncome Ot
Settled duning the year 08)
At 31 December 2008 -

20. Share capital

2009 2008

Em £m

Issued and fully pad
255,763,664 ardinary shares of 2p each (2008 250 291965 ordinary shares of 2p each) 51 50

On 4 December 2009 the Company 1ssued 5,471 699 ordinary shares of 2p each for consideration of £29m The new ordinary shares
were 15sued 1n consideration for the Group s acquisition of a 19 8% stake in Fusion P plc and were vendor placed on behalf of Fusion iP pl¢
by the Groups brokers KBC Peet Hunt, o existing Group shareholders Accordingly the associated cash flows are not presented in the
Group s consolidated statement of cash flows

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry equal voting rights, equal rights to income and distributions of assets
on hguidation or otherwise, and no nght to fixed ncome

21, Operating lease arrangements

silodasfwod sjddnoiddi mmm

2009 2008
Em £m
Payments under aperating leases recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for the year 0.4 05

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows

2009 2008

Em fm

Within one year 03 03
In the secend to hfth years inclusive 0.4 Cc6
0.7 0%

Operating lease payments represent rentals and other charges payable by the Group for certain of its office properties Leases are
negotiated for an average term of five years and rentals are fixed for an average of one year
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22. Share-based payments

LTIP awards

Awards under the LTIR take the form of provisional awards of ordinary shares of 2p each inthe Group Awards will generally vest over
three years following the date on which they are made to the extent that performance conditions have been met The Rermuneration
Committee wilt impose objective conditions on the vesting of awards, and it s propased that such conditions will be imposed as reflect the
guidelines of institutional mvestors from time to time At present, it 1s intended that the performance conditions for any potential future
grants will be based on the Group s TSR performance The awards granted in 2007 and 2008 will vest in full after three years in the event
of TSR growth of 15% per annum on a cumulative basis being achieved 50% of an award granted will vest in the event of compound
annual TSR growth of 10% being achieved with a shding scale between these points

The movement in the number of shares notionally awarded under the LTIP 1s set out below

2009 2008
At 1 January 3,483,009 2,656,716
Notionally awarded during the year - 826,293
At 31 December 3,483,009 3483009

The fair value of awards made during each of the following years has been calculated using a Monte Carlo pricing model with the
following key assumptions

2009 2008
Share price at date of award - 105p
Exercise price - ENIl
Expected votatilty {median ef historical 50 day moving average) - 26%
Expected life (years) - 3
Expected dividend yield - Q%
Risk-free interest rate - 4%
Value per gption - 42p

The fair value ¢harge recognised in the income statement during the year in respect of LTIP share awards was £0 6m {2008 £06m)

23. Investments in limited partnerships

£m
At 1 January 2008 10
Additions during the year Q4
At 1 January 2009 14
Additions during the year G2
Change in fair value during the year {02}
At 31 December 2009 1.5

The Group considers tnvestments in hmited partnership investments to be Level 3 in the fair value merarchy throughout the current
and previous financial years

24 Related party transactions
The Group has various related parties anising from its key management, subsidianes, equity stakes in portfolio companies and
management of certain limited partnership funds

a) Limited partnerships

The Group manages a number of investment funds structured as imited partnerships Group entities have a limited partnership interest
(see note 1) and act as the general partners of these hmited partnerships The Group therefore has power to exert significant influence
over these imited partnerships The following amounts have been included in respect of these limited partnerships

2009 2008
Statement of comprehensive income £m £m
Revenue from services 0.8 09
2009 2008
Staternent of inancial posihion Em £m
Investment in imited partnerships 15 14

Amounts due from related parties - -




24, Related party transactions (continued)
b} Key management transactions
The key management had direct shareholdings in the following spin-out companies as at 31 December 2009

MNumber of Nurnier of Numnber of

shares held at shares acaqured  shares held at

1 January Adisposed) 31 Becember
Director Comgary name 2009  nthe pencd 2009 %
Alan Aubrey Activotec SPP Lirmited 1500 - 1500 09%
Amaethon Limited - A Ordinary Shares 104 - 104 3%
Amaethon Limited - B Ordinary Shares 1966 - 1N966 10%
Amaethon Limited - Ordinary Shares 21 - 2! 03%
Avacta Group plc® 12961857 314256 1327613 10%
Bionigs Lirmited 1063 - 1063 10%
Capsant Neurotechnologles Limited 1631 - 11631 08%
Cerogenid Limited 3143 {3143) - -
Chamelic Lirnited 26 - 26 16%
COE Group plc 357,204 - 357204 10%
Crysalin Limited 1447 - 1447 Q4%
Dispersia Limited 416 - 416 10%
EmDot Limited - 15 15 09%
Getech Group pic 15000 - 15000 <01%
Green Chemicals plc 108 350 - 108 350 13%
Icona Selubions Limited 1674 - 1674 13%
lka Technologies Limited 175 - n7s 10%
Karus Therapeutics Limited 223 - 223 Q7%
Leads Lithhum Power Lirmited 178 - 78 12%
Leeds Reproduchive Biosciences Limited 18 - 18 11%
Lutc Research Limited 132 (132) - -
Mode Diagnostics Limited 1,863 - 1863 12%
Madern Brosciences plc 1185150 - 1185150 21%
Modern Water plc 575 000 - 575 000 10%
Qverlay Media Limited 22 10 32 14%
Oxford Advanced Surfaces Group plc 2172 809 - 2172809 12%
Oxford Catalysts Group plc 254749 - 254749 04%
Oxford Nancpore Technologies Limited 1442 - 11442 10%
Oxford RF Sensars Limited 53639 - 53639 08%
QOxtox Limited 25363 - 251363 06%
Pharminox Limited 685 - 685 03%
Photopharmica (Holdings) Limited 37020 - 37020 10%
Plexus Planning Limited 1732 - 1732 08%
ReactivLab Limited 50 - 50 119
Retroscreen Virology Limited 1858 - 1858 03%
Revolymer Limited 2963 - 2963 04%
Simulstrat Limited - A Preference Shares 24 063 - 24 063 2B%
Simulstrat Limited - Ordinary Shares 2255 - 2255 13%
Structure Vision Limited 212 - 212 12%
Surrey Nanosysiems Limited 393 - 193 10%
Sustainable Resource Sofutions Limited - 25 25 14%
Syntopix Group pic 77059 (328> 76731 10%
Theragenetics Limited™ 3i50 (3150) - -
Tissue Regenix Limited 89 - 89 D 8%
Tracsis pic 203400 - 203400 10%
Xanic Limited 16 - 16 06%
Xeros Limited 241 - 24 13%
Alison Fielding Activotec SPP Limited 300 - 300 C2%
Amaethon Limited - A Ordinary Shares 105 - 105 32%
Amaethon Limited - B Ordinary Shares 12049 - 12048 10%
Amaethon Limuted - Ordinary Shares 21 - 21 03%
Avacta Group plc# 7522 403 141702 7664105 0 6%
Bionigs Limited 1063 - 1063 10%
Capsant Neurctechnologies Limuted 7847 ~ 7847 05%
Cerogenix Limited 874 (814) - -
Chamelic Limited 2t - 21 13%
COE Group plc 468 314 - 468 314 13%
Crysalin Limited 1447 - 1447 04%

All figures refer to ordinary shares unfess indicated otherwise

() On 15 January 2009 Avacta Group plc acquired the entire 1ssued ordinary share capital of Theragenetics Limited Theragenetics Limited shareholders received
approximately 112 ordinary shares in Avacia Group plc as consideration for each ordinary share in Theragenetics Limited hald at that time
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

24. Related party transactions {(continued)
b) Key management transactions (continued)

Number of Murnber of Nurnber of

shares held at shares acquired  shares held at

1 January fldispased) 31 December
Durector Compary name 2009  inthe period 2009 %
Alison Fielding {continued) Dispersia Limited 342 - 342 08%
EmDot Limited - 14 14 08%
Green Chernicals plc 126181 - 126181 16%
Icona Solutions Limited 1419 - 1419 11%
lika Technologies Limited 328 - 328 0 3%
Karus Therapeutics Limited 43 - 43 01%
Leeds Lithium Power Limited 172 - 72 12%
Leeds Reproductive Blosciences Limited 17 - 17 10%
Luto Research Limited 132 (132) - -
Mode Diagnostics Limited 1632 - 1632 11%
Modern Biosciences plc 773460 283883 1057343 19%
Modern Water plc 276000 - 276000 0 5%
Overlay Media Limited 18 10 28 12%
Cxford Advanced Surfaces Group ple 61042 - 61042 0 3%
Cxford Catalysts Group plc 84196 - 84196 01%
Oxford Nancpore Technolegies Lirmnited 5721 - 5721 05%
Cxford RF Sensors Limited 15085 - 15085 Q2%
Oxtox Limited 16 601 - 16 601 0 4%
Pharminox Limited 274 - 274 01%
Photopharmica (Heldings) Linmited 27350 - 27350 07%
Plexus Planning Limited 480 - 480 02%
ReactivLab Limited 48 - 48 1%
Retroscreen Virology Limited 1216 - 1216 C3%
Revolymer Limited 1198 - 1198 02%
Simulstrat Limited - A Preference Shares 15750 - 15750 18%
Simulstrat Limited - Ordinary Shares 1476 - 1476 09%
Structure Vision Limited 195 - 185 11%
Surrey Nanosysterns Lirmited 323 - 323 08%
Sustainable Resource Solutions Limited - 25 25 14%
Syntopix Group pic 35477 - 35477 05%
Theragenetics Limited® 1260 (1260) - -
Tissue Regenix Limuted BS - 85 0 8%
Tracsis pic 197750 - 197750 10%
Xanic Lirmited 15 - 5 0 5%
Xeros Limited 197 - 197 10%
Magnus Goodlad Activotec SPP Limited 627 - 627 0 4%
Amaethon Limited - A Crdinary Shares 31 - 31 09%
Amaethon Limited - B Ordinary Shares 3616 - 3616 03%
Amaethon Limited - Ordinary Shares 6 - 6 <01%
Avacta Group ple® 2297770 141702 2439472 02%
Bronigs Limited 533 - 533 0 5%
Capsant Neurotechnologies Limited 7772 - 1772 05%
Carogenix Limited 651 (651 - -
Chamelic Lirmted 20 - 20 13%
COE Group plc 246094 - 246094 07%
Crysaln Limited 1125 - 1125 03%
Dispersia Limited 324 - 324 08%
EmDot Limited - 14 14 08%
Green Chemicals plc 43067 {21533) 21534 03%
lcona Solutions Limited 1355 - 1355 10%
lika Technologies Limited 260 - 260 02%
Karus Therapeutics Limited 105 - 105 03%
Leeds Lithium Power Limited [=]] - 5]} 0 4%
Leeds Reproductive Biostiences Lirmted 4] - 6 04%
Luto Research Limited 30 30 - -

All figures refer to ordinary shares unless indicated otherwise

(1) On 15 January 2009 Avacta Group plc acquired the entire 1ssued ordinary share capital of Theragenetics Lirmiied Theragenetics Limited shareholders received
approximately 112 ordinary shares in Avacta Group pic as consideration for each ordinary share in Theragenetscs Limited held at that ime




24 Related party transactions (continued)
b) Key management transactions {(continued}

Number of Number of Number of

shares held at shares acqured  shares held at

1 January ftdisposed) 31 December
Director Company name 2009  nthe perod 2006 %
Magnus Goedlad {(¢ontinued) Mode Diagnostics Limited 1549 - 1549 10%
Modern Blosciences pic 773460 225141 998 601 18%
Modern Water pic 476 200 - 476 200 08%
Overlay Media Limited 17 9 26 1%
Oxford Advanced Surfaces Group plc 425 857 - 425 857 02%
Oxford Catalysts Group plc 74 684 - 74 684 01%
Oxford Nanopore Technologies Limited 5721 - 5721 05%
Oxford RF Sensors Limited 29735 - 29735 04%
Oxtox Limited 16601 - 16 601 0 4%
Pharminox Limited 274 - 274 O1%
Photopharmica {Holdings) Limited 21340 - 21340 0 &%
Plexus Planming Lirruted 444 - 444 02%
ReactivLab Limited 45 - 45 10%
Retroscreen Virclogy Limited 1216 - 1216 03%
Ravolymer Limited 1228 - 1228 02%
Simulstrat Limited - A Preference Shares 15750 - 15750 18%
Simulstrat Limited - Ordinary Shares 1476 - 1476 09%
Structure Vision Limited 83 - a3 05%
Surrey Nangsysterns Limited 306 - 306 08%
Sustainable Resource Sclutions Limited - 23 23 13%
Syntopix Group plc 13312 - 13312 02%
Theragenetics Linnited® 1260 {1260} - -
Tissue Regenix Limited 3 - 31 03%
Tracsis plc N3000 - n3000 G 6%
Xanic Limited 14 - 14 05%
Xeros Limited 187 - 187 10%
Mike Townend Amaethon Lirited - A Ordinary Shares 104 - 104 3%
Amaethon Linuted - B Orctinary Shares 1966 - 1966 10%
Amaathon Limited - Ordinary Sharas 21 - 21 03%
Capsant Neurotechnologies Limited 1282 - nes2 08%
Chamelic Limited 23 - 23 14%
Crysalin Lirnited 1286 - 1286 04%
Dispersia Limited 370 - 370 09%
EmDot Limited - 4 14 08%
Green Chemicals pic n3z2z22 - 13222 14%
lcana Solutions Limited 1515 - 1515 11%
Leads Littnum Power Limited 178 - 178 12%
Leeds Reproductive Biosciences Limited 18 - 18 1%
Mode Diagnostics Limited 1756 - 1756 1%
Modern Biosciences plc 1185150 - 1185150 21%
Modern Water plc 575000 - 575000 10%
Overlay Media Limited 19 10 29 13%
Oxford Advanced Surfaces Group pic 932994 - 9329%4 05%
Oxford Nanopore Technotogtes Limited 3490 - 3490 03%
Oxtox timited 25 363 - 25363 0 6%
Photopharmica {Holdings) Limited 37020 - 37020 10%
Reactivlab Limited 51 - 51 12%
Retroscreen Virology Lirmted 1858 - 1858 05%
Revolymer Limtted 1198 - 1198 02%
Sirnulstrat Linmted - A Preference Shares 24063 - 24 063 2 8%
Simulstrat Limited - Ordinary Shares 2255 - 2255 13%
Structure Vision Limited 212 - 212 12%
Surrey Nanosystems Limted 350 - 350 09%
Sustainabte Resource Solutions Limited - 25 25 14%
Tissue Regenix Limited 89 - 89 08%
Tracsis ple 84750 - 84750 04%
Xant Limited 16 - 16 Q6%
Xeros Limited 213 - 213 11%
Graham Richards Getech Group plc 30000 - 30000 01%
summit Corporation plc 662958 - 662958 11%

All figures refer to ordinary shares unless indicated otherwise

(D On 15 January 2009 Avacta Group plc acquired the entire 1ssued ordinary share capial of Theragenetics Limited Theragenetics Limited shareholders received
approumately 112 ordinary shares in Avacta Group plc as consideration for each ordinary share in Theragenetics Lirmited held at that time
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

24 Related party transactions (continued)

b) Key management transactions (continued)
Number of Numnber of Number of
shares held at shares acquired  shares held at
1. tanuary ftdisposed) 31 December

Director Company name 2009  inthe penod 2009 %
Bruce Smith Capsant Neurotechnologies Limited 20724 - 20724 14%
Getech Group ple 15000 - 15000 01%
1Qur Lirsted - 2000 - 2000 08%
Nanotecture Group plc 50000 - 50000 05%
Oxford Catalysts Group plc 10000 - 10000 1%
Synairgen plc 200000 - 200000 3%
Syntopix Group pic 15 241 - 15 241 02%
Roger Brooke Activotec SPP Limited 1459 - 1459 0 B8%
Awacta Group plcw 661318 - 661318 <01%
Bionigs Lymited 1000 - 1000 09%
Capsant Neuretechnolegees Limited 2 667 - 2667 02%
Getech Group plc 30000 - 30000 01%
Glycoform Lirmted 937 - 937 03%
Inhubox Lirmted 500 - 500 02%
10ur Lirnited 1400 - 1400 06%
Nanotecture Group plc 33335 - 33335 0 3%
Oxford Nanopore Technologies Limited 348 - 3481 0 3%
Pharrninox Limited 786 - 786 0 4%
Proximagen Neurosclience plc 160 000 {25 COO) 135 000 02%
ReOx Limited 2717 - 2717 03%
Revolymer Limited 1351 - 1351 02%
Stratophase Limited 4549 - 4549 05%
Summit Carporation plc 1400 - 1400 <01%
Syntopix Group plc 11299 - 1299 01%

All figures refer to ordinary shares unless indicated ctherwise

() On 15 January 2009 Avacta Group plc acquired the entire 18sued ordinary share capital of Theragenetics Limited Theragenetics Limited shareholders re¢eived
approximately 112 ordinary shares in Avacta Group plc as consideration for each erdinary share in Theragenetics Lirnited held at that time

Compensation to key management compnises solely that paid to executrve directors of the Group Full details of directors’
compensation are disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 26 to 29 and these amounts are included within
the employee costs set cut innote 8

¢) Portfolio companies
The Group earns fees from the provisian of business support services and corporate finance advisory to portfolio companies in which
the Group has an equity stake The following amounts have been included tn respect of these fees

2009 2008
Statement of comprehensive ncome Em £m
Revenue from services 0.5 08
2009 2008
Staterment of financial position Em £m
Trade recevables 02 02

d) Subsidiary companies
Subsidiary companies which are not i00% owned either directly or indirectly by the parent company have intercompany balances with
other Group companies totalling as follows

2009 2008
£m £m
intercompany balances with other Group companies 63 60

These intercompany balances represent funding loans provided by Group companies that are interest free, repayable on demand
and unsecured

25 Minority interest

2009 2008

£m £m

At 1 January - 03
Disposal of minonty interest - (02)
Share of loss for the year - (0N

At 31 December - -




26 Capital commitments

Year of Ongqinal Invested Remauung

commencement commitment todate commitment

Partnership of partnership fm £m £m
University of Southampton® 2002 50 30 20
King s College Londont? 2003 50 18 32
University of York - CNAP! ¢ 2003 08 02 06
University of Leeds™ 2005 50 50 -
University of Bristol™ 2005 50 10 40
University of Surrey®t 2006 50 oS 45
University of York™ 2006 50 (o]} 49
Queen Mary University of London®? 2006 50 03 47
University of Bath®? 2006 50 02 48
University of Glasgowt* 2006 50 i0 40
458 131 327

¥ Under the terms of an agreement entered into in 2002 between the Group the University of Southampton andg certam of the University of Southamptons
subsidiaries 1P2IPO Ltmited agreed {o make £50m availlable for the purposes of making investments n University of Southarmpton spin-out companies
The basis for iInvestment is subject to review duning 2010

“ Under the terms of an agreement entered into during 2003 between the Group and King s College Londan { KCL ) and Kings College London Business Limited
(formerly KCL Enterprises Lirmited) the Group agreed to make £50m available for the purposes of making investments in spin out companies Under the terms
of this agreement KCL was previously able to require the Company to make a further £50m available for investments in spin out companies on the tenth anniversary
of the partnersnip However the 2003 agreement was terminated and replaced by a revised agreement between the same parties on 12 Nevember 2009 Under
the revised agreement the Group has agreed t¢ target investing the remaining commitment of £3 2m over a three year period KCL cannot however require the
Group to make any addiional funds available Other changes effected by the revised agreement mcluded the removal of the Groups autematic entitlerment to
intial partner equity inevery spin out company and/or a share of KCLs icensing fees from intellectual property commercialisation and changes to the
termination nghts of the parties

4t I 2003 the Group entered into an agreement with the Uriversity of York The agreement relates to a specialist research centre within the University of York
the Centre for Novel Agricultural Products ( CNAP ) The Group has commitied to mvest up to a total of £08m in spin-out companies based on CNAP s intellectuat
praperty In 2006 the Group extended Its partnership with the University of York to cover the entire university The Group has committed toinvest E50mn
University of York spin-outs over and beyond the £08m commitment as part of the Group s agreement with CNAP The agreement with Yark was amended
during the year so as te alter the process by which the Group evaluates commercialisation cpportunities and the levei of inibial partner equity the Group 1s
entitled to as a result further the Group s autornatic entitlement to share in any of York s proceeds from out hcensing has been removed from the agreement

" The Group extended it partnership with the Uriversity of Leeds ( Leeds ) in July 2005 by securing the right and obhgation to invest up te £50min Leeds
spin out companies

* |n December 2006 the Group entered into an agreement with the University of Bristol { Bristal } The Group has committed to invest up to a total of £50m
in Bristol spin-out companies

« Under the terms of an agreement entered nto in 2006 betwaen the Group and the University of Surrey ( Surrey ) the Group has committed to invest
up to a total of £50m in spin out companies based on Surrey s intellectual property

“n July 2006 the Group entered into an agreement with Queen Mary University of London { QM ) 1o mnvest in QM spin out companies The Group has
commitied to nvest up to a total of £50m in GM spin out companigs

il|n September 2006 the Group entered nto an agreement with the University of Bath ( Bath } to invest in Bath spin out companies The Group has commuitted
to invest up to a totat of £50m In Bath spin cut companies The agreement with Bath was amended during the year so as to remove the Groups automatic
entitlernent {o a share of the imbial equnty or hicence fees (as applicable) recaived by Bath from the cormmmerciahisation of its intellectual property i the event
the Greup and its employees have not been actively involved in developing the relevant cpportunity

) |n Qctober 2006 the Group entered into an agreerment with the Umiversity of Glasgow { Glasgow ) to invest in Glasgow spin out comparies The Group
has commutied to invest up to a total of £5 0m in Glasgow spin out companigs

27. Post balance sheet events

0On 22 January 2010, the Group announced that it had won the mandate to manage the North East Technology Fund {the "Fund"),

a £25m venture capital fund that will invesi in technology companies in the North East reqion from seed through to growth stages
of development including opportunities from the leading research universities based i the region The Group will receive management
fees and has the potential to generate performance fees from successful investment of the Fund In addition the Group will be able
to co-invest alongside the Fund in appropriate opportunities

On i February 2010, Oxford Nanopore Technologies Limited announced a further £17 4m equity financing from new and existing
investors mcluding 1P Group and IP Venture Fund o accelerate the development of its electronic, single motecule analysis technology
This February 2010 investment was completed at a prermium to the January 2009 round and will result in a further £2 2m fair value gain
to the Group in 2010
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Company balance sheet

As at 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Note £m £€m

ASSETS

Fixed assets

Investment in subsidiary undertakings 2 253 253

Investment 1n associated undertakings 3 98 98

Other investments 4 29 ~

Loans to subsidiary undertakings 5 726 732

Total assets 106 1083

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capltal and reserves

Called up share capital 6 54 50

Share prermium account 6 99.3 967

Profit and loss reserve 6 (6.6) (62}

Merger reserve 6 12.8 128

Total equity shareholders’ funds and liabllities 10.6 1083

Registered number 4204450

The financial statements on pages 64 to 67

and were signed onyts behalf by

(SN 7

Bruce Smith

Alan Aubrey
Charrman Chief Executive Officer

proved by the Beard of Directors and autherised for 1ssue on 1 March 2010




Notes to the Company financial statements 65

1. Accounting policies

The financial statements of the parent company have been prepared under the historical cost convention, in accordance with the
CA 2006 and applicable United Kingdom accounting standards A summary of the more important accounting policies which have
been apphed consistently throughout the year are set out below

Investments
Investments are stated at historic cost less any provision for impairment in value and are held for long term investment purposes

Provisions are based upon an assessiment of events or changes in circumstances that indicate that an impairment has occurred such
as the performance and/or prospects (including the financial prospects) of the investee company being significantly below the expectations
on which the investment was based a significant adverse change in the markats in which the investee company operates or a deterioration
in general market conditions

Intercompany loans
Allintercompany loans are initially recognised at fair value As all intercompany loans are repayable on demand, their carrying value
approxmates to thewr far value

Impairment

If there 1s anindication that an asset might be impaired, the Company will perform an impairment review An asset 1s impaired

if the recoverable amount being the higher of net realisable value and value in use, Is less than its carrying amount Value in use
is measured based on future discounted cash flows { DCF ) attributable to the asset In such cases the carrying value of the asset
1S reduced to recoverable amount with a corresponding charge recognised in the profit and loss account

FInancial instruments
Currently the Company dees not enter into derivative financial instruments Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
and cease to be recognised on the basis of when the related titles pass to or from the Company

Share-based payments
The fair value of Long Term Incentive Plan ( LTIP') awards are estimated at the date of award, using a Monte Carlo simulation
technigue taking intc account the terms and conditions of the award, including market-based performance conditions

No expense 15 recogrised for grants that do not vest and charges previously made are reversed except where vesting i1s conditional
upecn a market condition which is treated as vesting irrespective of whetber or not the market condition s satisfied provided all other
performance conditicns are satisfied

At each balance sheet date before vesting, the cumulative expense (s calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting
penod has expired and management s best estimate of the achievement or otherwise of non-market conditions, the number of
equity Instruments that will ullimately vest or in the ¢ase of an instrument subject to a market condition be treated as vesting
as described above The movement In cumulative expense since the previous balance sheet date 1s recognised in the statement
of comprehensive Income, with a corresponding entry in equity

Where the terms for an equity-settled award are medified, and the modification increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment, or 15 otherwise beneficial {o the award recipient at the date of modification, the incremental farr value 1s amortised over
the vesting period

£

2. Investments in subsidiary undertakings 3
Em s

b

At 1 January 2009 253 '5
Additions B §
Impairment B §
Disposals - 3
1

At 31 December 2009 25.3 3
o

4
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Notes to the Company financial statements (continued)

2. Investments in subsidiary undertakings (continued)
Details of the company s subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2009 are as follows

Place of incorporation Proportion of Proporteon of Method used to

(or registration) ownership inferest vohng power held account for

Name of subsidiary and operation L] Invesiment
IP2IPO Limited England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
IP2IPO Managemeni Limited' England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
IP2IPO Management Il Limited! England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
IP2IPO Management Il Limited! England and Wales 1000 10600 Acguisition
IPZIFD Management IV Limited England and Wales 1000 1000 Acguisition
IP2IFO Management V Limited' England and Wales 1000 1000 Acguisition
IP2IPQ (Europe) Limited!s England and Wales 1000 1000 Acguisition
IP2IPQ Guarantee |imited'® England and Wales 1000 1060 Acguisition
Top Technology Ventures Limited?® England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
HATT 11l GP Limited'? England and Wales 1000 1000 Acguisition
Top Technolegy Ventures IV GP Linited™? England and Wales 1000 1000 Acguisition
IP Venture Fund GP Limited"? England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
IP Ventures (Scottand) Limited"? Scotland 1000 1000 Acquisition
IP Europe (GP} Limited'2? England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
Techtran Group Limited England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
Techtran investments Limited'? England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
Techtran Services Limited'2 England and Wales 1000 1000 Acguisition
Techtran Corporate Finance Lirnited'? England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
Techtran Limited!? England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
Modern Biosciences plcé England and Wales 543 690 Acquisifion
PIMCO 2501 Limited'4 England and Wales 5413 690 Acquisition
PIMCO 2664 Limited*? England and Wales 543 690 Acquisition
Rimcazole Limited™ England and Wales 543 690 Acquisition
Modern Biosciences Nominees Limited™ England and Wales 5413 650 Acquisition
MBS Secretanal Limited'? England and Wales 543 650 Acquisition
MBS Director Limited'? England and Wales 543 690 Acquisition
IP2IPO Nominees Limited? England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
IPZ2IPO Services Limited? England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
IP2IPO (LifeUK) Limited? England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
IP Industry Partners Limited? England and Wates 1000 000 Acquisition
Aptuscan Limited' England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
C-Capture Limited' England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
Metabio Limited England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
Organisense Limited? England and Wales 1000 1000 Acgquisition
Ovatus Limited' England and Wales 000 1000 Acquisition
Pregnapause Limited’ England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition
Rheokinisis Limited’ England and Wales 000 1000 Acquisition
vVax Limited’ England and Wales 1000 1000 Acquisition

Company held indirectly
Dormant company

Company operates a branch in Luxembourg

[+ NS BN U

Company limited by guarantee

Company engaged In fund managerent activity

Company engaged in n-hcensing of drugable intellectual property activity

7 Company renamed North East Technology (GP) Lirmited on 7 January 2010

All comparues above are incorporated in England with the exception of [P Veniures (Scotland) Limited which 1s incorporated
1in Scotland All companies above undertake the actiity of commercialising intellectual property unless stated otherwise




3 Investment in associated undertakings

£m
At 1 January 2009 and 31 December 2009 9.8
At 31 December 2C09 the Company has investments where it holds 20% or more of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the
following companies
% of 1ssued Loss Date
share Net assets before tax of financiat
Undertaking capital held £000 £000 statements
Photopharmica (Holdings) Lirmited 499% 11,835 - 31 July 2009
Medern Water pic 232% 41,390 (2400} 31 December2008
All companies are incerporated in England and Wales
No profit/(loss) information 15 presented in respect of companies that have filed abbreviated accounts
4 Other investments
£m
At 1 January 2009 -
Additions 29
Impairment -
Disposals -
At 31 December 2009 29
5. Loans to subsidiary undertakings
£m
AL 1January 2009 732
Impairment of loans in the year (03
Net repayment of loans in the year (03
At 31 December 2009 726
The amounts due from subsidiary undertakings are interest free, repayable on demand and unsecured
6 Share capital and reserves
Profit
Share Merger Share andrlgs‘s
capital reserve premium reserve
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2009 50 128 967 (62)
Loss for the year - - - 09
lssue of equity 01 - 26 -
Share-based payment charge - - - 05
At 31 December 2009 51 12.8 993 (6.6)

Detalls of the Company s authorised share capital and changes in its (ssued share capital can be found in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements on page 57 Details of the movement in the share premium account can be found in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 41

7. Profit and loss account
As permiited by Section 408 of the CA 2006 the Company's profit and loss acceunt has not been included in these financial statements
The Company s loss for the year was £F09m (2008 £73m loss)

Details of auditer's remuneration are disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements
8. Directors’ emoluments, employee information and share-based payments

Full details of the directors remuneration can be found in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 26 to 29 Full details of the
share-based payments charge and related disclosures can be found in noie 22 to the consohdated financial statements

The Company had no employees during 2009 or 2008
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Shareholder information

Company registration number

Registered office

Directors

Company secretary

Brokers

Registrars

Bankers

Solicitors

Independent auditors

4204490

24 Cornhill
London EC3Y 3ND

Dr Bruce Gordon Smith, CBE (Non-execufive Chairman)

Alan John Aubrey (Chief Executive Officer)

Dr Alison Margaret Fielding (Chief Technology Qificer)

Magnus James Goodlad {Chief Operating Officer)

Michael Chartes Nettleton Townend (Director of Capital Markets)
Professor Willlam Graham Richards, CBE (Senior Non-executive Director)
Chnistopher Roger Etinck Brooke (Non-executive Cirector)

Francis Adam Wakefield Carpenter (Non-executive Director)

Angela Leach

KBC Peel Hunt Limited
111 Qld Broad Street
London EC2N IPH

Capita IRG plc

The Requstry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Roval Bank of Scotland
PO Box 333

Silbury House

300 Silbury Boulevard
Milton Keynes MKS 2ZF

Pinsen{ Masons
CityPoint

One Ropemaker Street
London EC2Y GAH

BDO LLP
55 Baker Street
London WU 7EU
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